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PROGRESSIVE CARE, INC. 
CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 
 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the 
unaudited financial statements and notes thereto for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 found in this report 
and the audited year ended December 31, 2011 as filed in our Annual Report, form 10-K, on April 16, 2012. In addition to 
historical information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions. Where possible, we have tried to identify these forward looking statements by using words such as 
“anticipate,” “believe,” “intends,” “may”  or similar expressions. Our actual results could differ materially from those 
anticipated by the forward-looking statements due to important factors and risks including, but not limited to, those set 
forth under “Risk Factors. 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
Included in this Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements Report are “forward-looking” statements, as well 
as historical information. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are 
reasonable, we cannot assure you that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be 
correct. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements as a result of 
certain factors, including matters described in the section titled “Risk Factors.” Forward-looking statements include 
those that use forward-looking terminology, such as the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” 
“may,” “project,” “plan,” “will,” “shall,” “should,” and similar expressions, including when used in the 
negative.  Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable and 
achievable, these statements involve risks and uncertainties and we cannot assure you that actual results will be 
consistent with these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise these forward-
looking statements, whether to reflect events or circumstances after the date initially filed or published, to reflect the 
occurrence of unanticipated events or otherwise. 
 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
 
The Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmCo, LLC, is a South Florida provider of prescription 
pharmaceuticals specializing in the sale of anti-retroviral medications and related patient care management, the sale 
and rental of durable medical equipment (“DME”) and the supply of prescription medications and DME to nursing 
homes and assisted living facilities. The Company is focused on developing the PharmCo brand and adding business 
elements that cater to specific under-served markets and demographics. This effort includes community and network 
based marketing strategies, the introduction of new locations, acquisitions and the strategic collaboration(s) with 
community, government and charitable organizations. 
 
Geographic Operations 
 
PharmCo currently caters to South Florida’s diverse population as its customers reside in Miami-Dade, Broward, St. 
Lucie, Martin, and Palm Beach Counties. The Company including its subsidiary PharmCo are located in the city of North 
Miami Beach. In addition to English, different members of the Company’s staff also speak Spanish, Portuguese, Hebrew, 
Russian, French and Creole. 
 
Description of the Business 
 
Products and Services 
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PharmCo is a provider of prescription pharmaceuticals, specializing in anti-retroviral patient care management and 
durable medical equipment. The Company also provides long term care solutions to skilled nursing facilities (SNFs), 
assisted living facilities (ALFs), retirement centers and communities, doctors’ offices and clinics. The Company offers 
same day delivery of all its products, both pharmacy and DME. 
 
As a specialty pharmacy catering to the needs of patients in need of anti-retroviral medications, and to increase the 
quality and credibility of the services we provide to these patients, the Company has added a staff that is well trained in 
acute illnesses. Further, the Company provides confidential prescription packaging that suits the individual patient’s 
needs and lifestyle. 
 
For its long term care customers, PharmCo provides purchasing, repackaging and dispensing of both prescription and 
non-prescription pharmaceutical products. PharmCo utilizes a unit-of-dose packaging system as opposed to the 
traditional vials used for its retail customers. This method of distribution improves control and patient compliance with 
recommended drug therapy by increasing the timeliness and accuracy of medication dispensing. PharmCo also provides 
computerized maintenance of patient prescription histories, third party billing and consultant pharmacist services. Its 
consulting services consist primarily of evaluation of monthly patient drug therapy and monitoring the institution’s drug 
distribution system. 
 
PharmCo is a fully accredited durable medical equipment provider that supplies hospital beds, oxygen supplies, power 
wheelchairs, scooters, walkers, and other related equipment and accessories in South Florida. PharmCo carries a broad 
range of equipment and accessories with most special requests honored the same or next day delivery. The Company 
offers both sales and rentals with size, color, style, and brand options available on the majority of its products. The 
Company also offers home service and maintenance, defective product replacements and free home installation and 
instruction. PharmCo was awarded a contract through Medicare competitive bidding in November of 2010, which 
terminated December 31, 2013. PharmCo was not awarded a contract through the rebid period. 
 
Distribution Method of Products and Services 
 
PharmCo sales and marketing efforts are focused primarily on patients with special pharmaceutical needs, specifically 
those in need of anti-retroviral medications. Though there is great competition in this market and the landscape of the 
industry is complicated, the Company believes it can capitalize on providing for unmet needs within this market base. 
The Company is working with influential members of the community to reach out to this sensitive demographic through 
event sponsorship and participation, one-on-one meetings, and charitable outreach. Also, the Company is assembling an 
experienced and dedicated sales team to promote PharmCo’s specialty services and establish a loyal customer base. The 
addition of contracts with healthcare payors like Medicare, Medicaid and other managed care organizations has become 
an integral component for sales success. On November 3, 2010, through competitive bidding, PharmCo was awarded a 
contract by Medicare to supply hospital beds, oxygen supplies, power wheelchairs and scooters, walkers, and all related 
accessories through 2013. This contract dramatically increased PharmCo’s ability to expand the sales of its durable 
medical equipment business. For the 2014-2016 re-bid period, the Company does not have a Medicare competitive bid 
contract for the South Florida area. 
 
Status of Any Publicly Announced Planned Products 
 
The Company currently has no new publicly announced products or services. 
 
Competitive Business Conditions, Competitive Position and Methods of Competition 
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The Company competes with national and independent retail drug stores, supermarkets, convenience stores, mail order 
prescription providers, discount merchandisers, membership clubs, health clinics, and internet pharmacies. Competition 
is based on several factors including store location and convenience, customer service and satisfaction, product 
selection and variety, and price. The Company’s competitive advantage lies in providing superior personalized service to 
the patients and facility operators, selectively adding labor saving and compliance enhancing technologies and carrying 
inventory to provide rapid delivery of durable medical equipment and all pharmaceutical needs. 
 
We face substantial competition within the pharmaceutical healthcare services industry and in the past year have seen 
even more consolidation. We expect to see this trend continue in the coming year and it is uncertain what effect, if any, 
these consolidations will have on us or the industry as a whole. The industry also includes a number of large, well-
capitalized companies with nationwide operations and capabilities in the specialty services and PBM services arenas, 
such as CVS Caremark, Express Scripts, Medco Health Solutions, Walgreens, MedImpact Healthcare Systems and many 
smaller organizations that typically operate on a local or regional basis. In the Specialty Pharmacy Services segment, we 
compete with several national and regional specialties pharmaceutical distribution companies that have substantial 
financial resources and which also provide products and services to the chronically ill such as CVS Caremark, Express 
Scripts, Medco Health Solutions and Walgreens. 
 
Some of our Specialty Pharmacy Services competitors are under common control with, or are owned by, pharmaceutical 
wholesalers and distributors or retail pharmacy chains and may be better positioned with respect to the cost-effective 
distribution of pharmaceuticals. Some of our primary competitors, such as Omnicare and Walgreens, have a 
substantially larger market share than our existing market share. Moreover, some of our competitors may have secured 
long-term supply or distribution arrangements for prescription pharmaceuticals necessary to treat certain chronic 
disease states on price terms substantially more favorable than the terms currently available to us. As a result of such 
advantageous pricing, we may be less price competitive than some of these competitors with respect to certain 
pharmaceutical products. However, we do not believe that we compete strictly on the selling price of particular products 
or services in either business segment; rather, we offer customers the opportunity to receive high quality care. 
 
Suppliers 
 
We obtain pharmaceutical and other products from manufacturers. We maintained relationships with a primary supplier 
which accounted for 60% and 78% of pharmaceutical purchases in 2013 and 2012 respectively and several 
supplementary suppliers. The loss of a supplier could adversely affect our business if alternate sources of supply are 
unavailable. We believe that our relationships with our suppliers, on the whole, are good. The two largest suppliers in 
2013 and 2012 accounted for approximately 85% and 91% respectively of our purchases. 
 
Dependence on One or Few Major Customers 
 
The Company sells to numerous customers including various managed care organizations within both the private and 
public sectors. Certain healthcare payors account for more than ten percent or more of the Company’s consolidated net 
sales in fiscal 2013 and 2012, the concentrations of which are presented under NOTE 3 “Billing Concentrations”. 
Medicare Part D is a major customer of the Company. However, Medicare Part D functions under several different 
healthcare payors the concentration of which varies throughout the course of the year. Medicare Part B is the largest 
payor for DME and accounts for 11% of total billing in fiscal 2013 and 2012. Florida Medicaid is the second largest 
healthcare payor for the Company, whose direct billing accounts for 20% and 19% of total billings for 2013 and 2012 
respectively. The Company does depend on these health care payors and a loss of one or more would have a major 
impact on the business. 
 
Patents and Trademarks 
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The Company does not currently own, either legally or beneficially, any patents or trademarks. 
 
Need for Governmental Approval of Principal Products or Services 
 
Government approval is necessary to open any new pharmacy location. 
 
Government contracts 
 
The Company fills prescriptions for the State of Florida Medicaid public assistance plan. Billings to Florida Medicaid were 
approximately 20% and 19% of total billings in fiscal 2013 and 2012 respectively. 
  
The Company also filled DME prescriptions as part of its Medicare Part B competitive bid contract in South Florida. 
Billings to Medicare Part B were approximately 11% of total billings in fiscal 2013 and 2012. 
 
Effect of Existing or Probable Governmental Regulation 
 
As a participant in the healthcare industry our operations and relationships are subject to Federal and state laws and 
regulations and enforcement by Federal and state governmental agencies. Various Federal and state laws and 
regulations govern the purchase, dispensing or distribution, and management of prescription drugs and related services 
we provide and may affect us. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all legal requirements material to 
our operations. 
 
We conduct ongoing educational programs to inform employees regarding compliance with relevant laws and 
regulations and maintain a formal reporting procedure to disclose possible violations of these laws and regulations to 
the Office of Inspector General (“OIG”) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 
  
Professional Licensure. Pharmacists, pharmacy technicians and certain other health care professionals employed by us 
are required to be individually licensed or certified under applicable state law. We perform criminal and other 
background checks on employees and are required under state licensure to ensure that our employees possess all 
necessary licenses and certifications. We believe that our employees comply in all material respects with applicable 
licensure laws. 
 
State laws require that each pharmacy location be licensed as an in-state pharmacy to dispense pharmaceuticals in that 
state. State controlled substance laws require registration and compliance with state pharmacy licensure, registration or 
permit standards promulgated by the state’s pharmacy licensing authority. Such standards often address the 
qualification of an applicant’s personnel, the adequacy of its prescription fulfillment and inventory control practices and 
the adequacy of its facilities. In general, pharmacy licenses are renewed annually. We believe that our pharmacy’s 
present and future locations comply with all state licensing laws applicable to these businesses. If our pharmacy location 
becomes subject to additional licensure requirements, are unable to maintain their required licenses or if states place 
burdensome restrictions or limitations on pharmacies, our ability to operate in the state would be limited, which could 
have an adverse impact on our business.  
 
Other Laws Affecting Pharmacy Operations.  We are subject to Federal and state statutes and regulations governing the 
operation of pharmacies, repackaging of drug products, wholesale distribution, dispensing of controlled substances, 
medical waste disposal, and clinical trials. Federal statutes and regulations govern the labeling, packaging, advertising 
and adulteration of prescription drugs and the dispensing of controlled substances. Federal controlled substance laws 
require us to register our pharmacy with the DEA and to comply with security, record keeping, inventory control and 
labeling standards in order to dispense controlled substances. 
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Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.  Certain provisions of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act govern the handling and 
distribution of pharmaceutical products. This law exempts many pharmaceuticals and medical devices from federal 
labeling and packaging requirements as long as they are not adulterated or misbranded and are dispensed in accordance 
with, and pursuant to, a valid prescription. We believe that we comply in all material respects with all applicable 
requirements. 
 
Anti-Kickback Laws.  Subject to certain statutory and regulatory exceptions (including exceptions relating to certain 
managed care, discount, bona fide employment arrangements, group purchasing and personal services arrangements), 
the Federal “anti-kickback” law prohibits the knowing and willful offer or payment of any remuneration to induce the 
referral of an individual or the purchase, lease or order (or the arranging for or recommending of the purchase, lease or 
order) of healthcare items or services paid for in whole or in part by Medicare, Medicaid or other government-funded 
healthcare programs (including both traditional Medicaid fee-for-service programs as well as Medicaid managed care 
programs).  Violation of the Federal anti-kickback statute could subject us to criminal and/or civil penalties including 
suspension or exclusion from Medicare and Medicaid programs and other government-funded healthcare programs.  A 
number of states also have enacted anti-kickback laws that sometimes apply not only to state-sponsored healthcare 
programs but also to items or services that are paid for by private insurance and self-pay patients.  State anti-kickback 
laws can vary considerably in their applicability and scope and sometimes have fewer statutory and regulatory 
exceptions than federal law.  Management carefully considers the importance of such anti-kickback laws when 
structuring our operations, and believes that we are in compliance therewith. 
 
The Federal anti-kickback law has been interpreted broadly by courts, the OIG and other administrative bodies. Because 
of the broad scope of those statutes, Federal regulations establish certain safe harbors from liability. Safe harbors exist 
for certain properly reported discounts received from vendors, certain investment interests held by a person or entity, 
and certain properly disclosed payments made by vendors to group purchasing organizations, as well as for other 
transactions or relationships. Nonetheless, a practice that does not fall within a safe harbor is not necessarily unlawful, 
but may be subject to scrutiny and challenge. In the absence of an applicable exception or safe harbor, a violation of the 
statute may occur even if only one purpose of a payment arrangement is to induce patient referrals or purchases. 
Among the practices that have been identified by the OIG as potentially improper under the statute are certain “product 
conversion” or “switching” programs in which benefits are given by drug manufacturers to pharmacists or physicians for 
changing a prescription (or recommending or requesting such a change) from one drug to another. Anti-kickback laws 
have been cited as a partial basis, along with state consumer protection laws discussed below, for investigations and 
multi-state settlements relating to financial incentives provided by drug manufacturers to retail pharmacies in 
connection with such programs. 
  
The Stark Laws.  The Federal self-referral law, commonly known as the “Stark Law”, prohibits physicians from referring 
Medicare patients for “designated health services” (which include, among other things, outpatient prescription drugs, 
durable medical equipment and supplies and home health services) to an entity with which the physician, or an 
immediate family member of the physician, has a direct or indirect financial relationship, unless the financial 
relationship is structured to meet an applicable exception. Possible penalties for violation of the Stark Law include denial 
of payment, refund of amounts collected in violation of the statute, civil monetary penalties and program exclusion. 
Management carefully considers the Stark Law and its accompanying regulations in structuring our relationships with 
physicians and believes that we are in compliance therewith. 
  
State Self-Referral Laws.  We are subject to state statutes and regulations that prohibit payments for the referral of 
patients and referrals by physicians to healthcare providers with whom the physicians have a financial relationship. 
Some state statutes and regulations apply to services reimbursed by governmental as well as private payors. Violation of 
these laws may result in prohibition of payment for services rendered, loss of pharmacy or health provider licenses, fines 
and criminal penalties. The laws and exceptions or safe harbors may vary from the Federal Stark Law and vary 
significantly from state to state. Certain of these state statutes mirror the Federal Stark Law while others may be more 
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restrictive. The laws are often vague, and in many cases, have not been widely interpreted by courts or regulatory 
agencies; however, we believe we are in compliance with such laws. 
 
Statutes Prohibiting False Claims and Fraudulent Billing Activities.  A range of Federal civil and criminal laws target false 
claims and fraudulent billing activities. One of the most significant is the Federal False Claims Act (the “False Claims 
Act”), which imposes civil penalties for knowingly making or causing to be made false claims in order to secure a 
reimbursement from government-sponsored programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid. Investigations or actions 
commenced under the False Claims Act may be brought either by the government or by private individuals on behalf of 
the government, through a “whistleblower” or “qui tam” action. The False Claims Act authorizes the payment of a 
portion of any recovery to the individual bringing suit. Such actions are initially required to be filed under seal pending 
their review by the Department of Justice. If the government intervenes in the lawsuit and prevails, the whistleblower 
(or plaintiff filing the initial complaint) may share with the Federal government in any settlement or judgment. If the 
government does not intervene in the lawsuit, the whistleblower plaintiff may pursue the action independently. The 
False Claims Act generally provides for the imposition of civil penalties and for treble damages, resulting in the possibility 
of substantial financial penalties for small billing errors that are replicated in a large number of claims, as each individual 
claim could be deemed to be a separate violation of the False Claims Act. 
 
Some states also have enacted statutes similar to the False Claims Act which may include criminal penalties, substantial 
fines, and treble damages. In recent years, Federal and state governments have launched several initiatives aimed at 
uncovering practices that violate false claims or fraudulent billing laws. Under Section 1909 of the Social Security Act, 
which became effective January 1, 2007, if a state false claim act meets certain requirements as determined by the OIG 
in consultation with the U.S. Attorney General the state is entitled to an increase of ten percentage points in the state 
medical assistance percentage with respect to any amounts recovered under a state action brought under such a law. 
Some of the larger states in terms of population that have had the OIG review such laws include: California, Florida, 
Illinois, Indiana, Massachusetts, Michigan, Nevada, Tennessee and Texas. We operate in one of these states and submit 
claims for Medicaid reimbursement to the respective state Medicaid agency.  This legislation has led to increased 
auditing activities by state healthcare regulators.  As such, we have been the subject of an increased number of 
audits.  While we believe that we are in compliance with Medicaid and Medicare billing rules and requirements, there 
can be no assurance that regulators would agree with the methodology employed by us in billing for our products and 
services and a material disagreement between us and these governmental agencies on the manner in which we provide 
products or services could have a material adverse effect on our business and operations, our financial position and our 
results of operations. 
 
The False Claims Act also has been used by the Federal government and private whistleblowers to bring enforcement 
actions under so-called “fraud and abuse” laws like the Federal anti-kickback statute and the Stark Law.  Such actions are 
not based on a contention that an entity has submitted claims that are facially invalid.  Instead, such actions are based 
on the theory that when an entity submits a claim, it either expressly or impliedly certifies that it has provided the 
underlying services in compliance with applicable laws, and therefore that services provided and billed for during an 
anti-kickback statute or Stark Law violation result in false claims, even if such claims are billed accurately for appropriate 
and medically necessary services.  The availability of the False Claims Act to enforce alleged fraud and abuse violations 
has increased the potential for such actions to be brought, and which often are costly and time-consuming to defend. 
  
Confidentiality, Privacy and HIPAA.  Most of our activities involve the receipt, use and disclosure of confidential medical, 
pharmacy or other health-related information concerning individual members, including the disclosure of the 
confidential information to the member’s health benefit plan. 
 
On April 14, 2003, the final regulations issued by United States Department of Health and Human Services 
(“HHS”),  regarding the privacy of individually identifiable health information (the “Privacy Regulations”) pursuant to the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) took effect. The Privacy Regulations are designed 
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to protect the medical information of a healthcare patient or health plan enrollee that could be used to identify the 
individual. 
 
The requirements imposed by the Privacy Regulations, the Transactions Standards, and the Security Standards are 
extensive and can require substantial cost and effort to assess and implement. We have taken and will continue to take 
steps that we believe are reasonable to ensure that our policies and procedures are in compliance with the Privacy 
Regulations, the Transactions Standards and the Security Standards. The requirements imposed by HIPAA have 
increased our burden and costs of regulatory compliance, altered our reporting to Plan Sponsors and reduced the 
amount of information we can use or disclose if members do not authorize such uses or disclosures. 
 
The healthcare industry is one of the fastest growing industries. In the United States, the provision of healthcare services 
of any kind is highly competitive. The Company’s ability to recruit qualified personnel, attract new institutional and retail 
clients, expand the reach of its pharmacy operations relies on its ability to quickly adapt to changing societal attitudes, 
market pressure and government regulation. The Company’s business model incorporates leveraging current revenue 
streams towards aggressive growth strategies. 
   
  
Estimate of the Amount Spent on Research and Development 
 
Research and development expenses were $0 for each of the years 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. 
 
Costs and effects of environmental compliance 
 
The costs of environmental compliance for the Company are minimal. The Company engages a recycling company for 
the disposal of all paper products amounting to approximately $150 per month. 
 
Employees 
  
The Company currently employs approximately 24 persons (consisting of 22 full-time employees and 2 part-time 
employees). 
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS 
  
Our business is subject to various industry, economic, regulatory and other risks and uncertainties. In addition to the 
other information in this report and our other filings with the SEC, you should carefully consider the risks described 
below, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. The 
following risk factors are not an exhaustive list of the risks associated with our business. Our business operations could 
also be affected by additional factors that are not presently known to us or that we currently consider to be 
immaterial to our operations. 
 
We have a history of losses and may not be able to sustain profitability. 
  
We may incur operating losses for the foreseeable future.   For the years ended December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 
and December 31, 2011, we had net sales of $9,333,141, $10,079,816 and $8,237,622, respectively. For the years ended 
December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had net losses of $585,417, $1,987,196 and 
$254,277, respectively.  Our ability to become profitable depends on our ability to have successful operations and 
generate and sustain sales, while maintaining reasonable expense levels, all of which are uncertain in light of our limited 
operating history in our current line of business.  
 
We derive a significant portion of our sales from prescription drug sales reimbursed by pharmacy benefit 
management companies. 
 
We derive a significant portion of our sales from prescription drug sales reimbursed through prescription drug plans 
administered by pharmacy benefit management (“PBM”) companies.  PBM companies typically administer multiple 
prescription drug plans that expire at various times and provide for varying reimbursement rates.  There can be no 
assurance that we will continue to participate in any particular pharmacy benefit manager network in any particular 
future time period.   If our participation in the prescription drug programs administered by one or more of the large PBM 
companies is restricted or terminated, we expect that our sales would be adversely affected, at least in the short 
term.  If we are unable to replace any such lost sales, either through an increase in other sales or through a resumption 
of participation in those plans, our operating results may be materially adversely affected. When we exit a pharmacy 
provider network and later resume network participation, there can be no assurance that we will achieve any particular 
level of business on any particular pace.  In addition, in such circumstances we may incur increased marketing and other 
costs in connection with initiatives to regain former patients and attract new patients covered by in-network plans. 
When we exit a pharmacy provider network and later resume network participation, there also can be no assurance that 
all clients of the PBM sponsor of the network will choose to include us again in their pharmacy network initially or at all.   
 
Efforts to reduce reimbursement levels and alter health care financing practices could adversely affect our businesses. 
 
The continued efforts of health maintenance organizations, managed care organizations, other companies, government 
entities, and other third party payors to reduce prescription drug costs and pharmacy reimbursement rates may impact 
our profitability. In particular, increased utilization of generic pharmaceuticals (which normally yield a higher gross profit 
rate than equivalent brand named drugs), has resulted in pressure to decrease reimbursement payments to retail and 
mail order pharmacies for generic drugs, causing a reduction in the generic profit rate. In addition, during the past 
several years, the U.S. health care industry has been subject to an increase in governmental regulation at both the 
federal and state levels. Efforts to control health care costs, including prescription drug costs, are underway at the 
federal and state government levels. Changing political, economic and regulatory influences may affect health care 
financing and reimbursement practices. If the current health care financing and reimbursement system changes 
significantly, the combined company’s business, financial position and results of operations could be materially 
adversely affected. 
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The frequency and rate of the introduction of new prescription drugs as well as generic alternatives to brand name 
prescription products. 
 
The profitability of retail pharmacy businesses is dependent upon the utilization of prescription drug products. 
Utilization trends are affected by the introduction of new and successful prescription pharmaceuticals as well as lower 
priced generic alternatives to existing brand name products. Accordingly, a slowdown in the introduction of new and 
successful prescription pharmaceuticals and/or generic alternatives (the sale of which normally yield higher gross profit 
margins than brand name equivalents) could adversely affect our business, financial position and results of operations. 
  
Declining gross margins in the PBM industry. 
 
The PBM industry has been experiencing margin pressure as a result of competitive pressures and increased client 
demands for lower prices, enhanced service offerings and/or higher service levels. In that regard, our Company 
maintains contractual relationships with generic pharmaceutical distributors that provide for purchase discounts and/or 
rebates on drugs. Manufacturer rebates often depend on a variety of criteria and cannot be relied upon for greater 
margins. Competitive pressures in the industry may cause us to share with clients a larger portion of rebates and/or 
discounts received. In addition, changes in existing federal or state laws or regulations or the adoption of new laws or 
regulations relating to patent term extensions, purchase discount and rebate arrangements with pharmaceutical 
suppliers and manufacturers could also reduce the discounts or rebates we receive. Accordingly, margin pressure in the 
industry resulting from these trends could adversely affect our business, financial position and results of operations. 
 
Uncertainty regarding the impact of Medicare Part D may adversely affect our business, financial position and our 
results of operations. 
 
Since its inception in 2006, the Medicare Drug Benefit has resulted in increased utilization and decreased pharmacy 
gross margin rates as higher margin business, such as cash and state Medicaid customers, migrated to Medicare Part D 
coverage. Further, as a result of the Medicare Drug Benefit, our PBM clients could decide to discontinue providing 
prescription drug benefits to their Medicare-eligible members. To the extent this occurs, the adverse effects of the 
Medicare Drug Benefit may outweigh any opportunities for new business generated by the new benefit. In addition, if 
the cost and complexity of the Medicare Drug Benefit exceed management’s expectations or prevent effective program 
implementation or administration; if changes to the regulations regarding how drug costs are reported for Medicare 
Drug Benefit and retiree drug subsidy purposes are implemented in a manner that impacts the profitability of our 
Medicare Part D business; if the government alters Medicare program requirements or reduces funding because of the 
higher-than-anticipated cost to taxpayers of the Medicare Drug Benefit or for other reasons; if we fail to design and 
maintain programs that are attractive to Medicare participants; or if we are not successful in retaining enrollees, or 
winning contract renewals or new contracts under the Medicare Drug Benefit’s competitive bidding process, our 
Medicare Part D services and the ability to expand our Medicare Part D services could be materially and adversely 
affected, and our business, financial position and results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 
Changes in industry pricing benchmarks could adversely affect our business, financial position and results of 
operations. 
 
Contracts in the prescription drug industry generally use certain published benchmarks to establish pricing for 
prescription drugs. These benchmarks include average wholesale price (“AWP”), average sales price (“ASP”) and 
wholesale acquisition cost (“WAC”). 
  
Recent events, including the proposed FDB and Medi-Span settlements described in the Government Regulation of 
Health Care Matters section, have raised uncertainties as to whether payors, pharmacy providers, PBMs and others in 
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the prescription drug industry will continue to utilize AWP as it has previously been calculated or whether other pricing 
benchmarks will be adopted for establishing prices within the industry. 
 
Changes in reporting of AWP, or in the basis for calculating reimbursement proposed by the federal government and 
certain states, and other legislative or regulatory adjustments that may be made regarding the reimbursement of 
payments for drugs by Medicaid and Medicare, could impact our pricing to customers and other payors and could 
impact our ability to negotiate rebates and/or discounts with manufacturers, wholesalers, PBMs or retail pharmacies. In 
some circumstances, such changes could also impact the reimbursement that we receive from Medicare or Medicaid 
programs for drugs covered by such programs and from MCOs that contract with government health programs to 
provide prescription drug benefits. In addition, it is possible that payors, pharmacy providers and PBMs will begin to 
evaluate other pricing benchmarks as the basis for contracting for prescription drugs and PBM services in the future, and 
the effect of this development on the business of the Company cannot be predicted at this time. 
 
The industries in which we operate are extremely competitive and competition could adversely affect our business, 
financial position and results of operations. 
 
We operate in a highly competitive environment. As a pharmacy retailer, we compete with other drugstore chains, 
supermarkets, discount retailers, membership clubs, Internet companies and retail health clinics, as well as other mail 
order pharmacies. In that regard, many pharmacy benefit plans have implemented plan designs that mandate or provide 
incentives to fill maintenance medications through mail order pharmacies. To the extent this trend continues, our retail 
pharmacy business could be adversely affected. In addition, some of these competitors may offer services and pricing 
terms that we may not be willing or able to offer. Competition may also come from other sources in the future. As a 
result, competition could have an adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of operations. 
 
Competitors in the PBM industry include large national PBM companies, such as Medco Health Solutions, Inc. and 
Express Scripts, Inc., as well as many local or regional PBMs. In addition, there are several large health insurers and 
managed care plans (e.g., United Healthcare, Wellpoint, Aetna, CIGNA) and retail pharmacies (e.g., Walgreens & CVS) 
which have their own PBM capabilities as well as several other national and regional companies that provide some or all 
of the same services. Some of these competitors may offer services and pricing terms that we, even if the anticipated 
benefits of our merger are realized in full, may not be able to offer. In addition, competition may also come from other 
sources in the future. As a result, competition could have an adverse effect on our business, financial position and 
results of operations. 
  
Existing and new government legislative and regulatory action could adversely affect our business, financial position 
and results of operations. 
 
The PBM business and retail drugstore business are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
Changes in these regulations may require extensive system and operating changes that may be difficult to implement. 
Untimely compliance or noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations could adversely affect the continued 
operation of our business, including, but not limited to: imposition of civil or criminal penalties; suspension of payments 
from government programs; loss of required government certifications or approvals; loss of authorizations to participate 
in or exclusion from government reimbursement programs, such as the Medicare and Medicaid programs; or loss of 
licensure. The regulations to which we are subject include, but are not limited to: the laws and regulations described in 
the Government Regulation of Health Care Matters section; accounting standards; tax laws and regulations; laws and 
regulations relating to the protection of the environment and health and safety matters, including those governing 
exposure to, and the management and disposal of, hazardous substances; and regulations of the FDA, the U.S. Federal 
Trade Commission, the Drug Enforcement Administration, and the Consumer Product Safety Commission, as well as 
state regulatory authorities, governing the sale, advertisement and promotion of products that we sell. In that regard, 
our business, financial position and results of operations could be affected by one or more of the following: 
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• federal and state laws and regulations governing the purchase, distribution, management, dispensing and 

reimbursement of prescription drugs and related services, whether at retail or mail, and applicable licensing 
requirements; 

   • the effect of the expiration of patents covering brand name drugs and the introduction of generic products; 

   
• the frequency and rate of approvals by the FDA of new brand named and generic drugs, or of over-the-counter 

status for brand name drugs; 
   • FDA regulation affecting the retail or PBM industry; 

   
• rules and regulations issued pursuant to the HIPAA; and other federal and state laws affecting the use, disclosure 

and transmission of health information, such as state security breach laws and state laws limiting the use and 
disclosure of prescriber information; 

   
• administration of the Medicare Drug Benefit, including legislative changes and/or CMS rulemaking and 

interpretation; 
   • government regulation of the development, administration, review and updating of formularies and drug lists; 

   
• state laws and regulations establishing or changing prompt payment requirements for payments to retail 

pharmacies; 
   • impact of network access (any willing provider) legislation on ability to manage pharmacy networks; 
   • managed care reform and plan design legislation; 

   
• insurance licensing and other insurance regulatory requirements applicable to offering Prescription Drug 

Providers (“PDP”) in connection with the Medicare Drug Benefit; 
   • direct regulation of pharmacies or PBMs by regulatory and quasi-regulatory bodies; and 
   • Federal government sequestration affecting Medicare Part B reimbursements. 
 
Changes in the health care regulatory environment may adversely affect our business. 
 
Future rulemaking could increase regulation of pharmacy services, result in changes to pharmacy reimbursement rates, 
and otherwise change the way we do business. We cannot predict the timing or impact of any future rulemaking, but 
any such rulemaking could have an adverse impact on our results of operations. 
 
The sustainability of our current business model is also dependent on the availability, pricing and rules and regulations 
relating to the dispensing of controlled medications. Changes that affect any of these variables could greatly impact our 
current revenue streams as well as alter our business structure and future plans for growth and development. 
  
Efforts to reform the U.S. health care system may adversely affect our financial performance. 
 
Congress periodically considers proposals to reform the U.S. health care system. These proposals may increase 
government involvement in health care and regulation of PBM or pharmacy services, or otherwise change the way the 
combined company or its clients do business. Health plan sponsors may react to these proposals and the uncertainty 
surrounding them by reducing or delaying purchases of cost control mechanisms and related services that the combined 
company would provide. The Company cannot predict what effect, if any, these proposals may have on its retail and 
pharmacy services businesses. Other legislative or market-driven changes in the health care system that the Company 
cannot anticipate could also materially adversely affect the combined company’s consolidated results of operations, 
consolidated financial position and/or consolidated cash flow from operations. 
 
If we are found to be in violation of Medicaid and Medicare reimbursement regulations, we could become subject to 
retroactive adjustments and recoupment, or exclusion from the Medicaid and Medicare programs. 
  
As a Medicaid and Medicare provider, we are subject to retroactive adjustments due to prior-year audits, reviews and 
investigations, government fraud and abuse initiatives, and other similar actions. Federal regulations provide for 
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withholding payments to recoup amounts payable under the programs and, in certain circumstances, allow for exclusion 
from Medicaid and Medicare. While we believe we are in material compliance with applicable Medicaid and Medicare 
reimbursement regulations, there can be no assurance that we, pursuant to such audits, reviews, investigations, or 
other proceedings, will be found to be in compliance in all respects with such reimbursement regulations. A 
determination that we are in violation of any such reimbursement regulations could result in retroactive adjustments 
and recoupment of payments and have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. As 
a Medicaid and Medicare provider, we are also subject to routine, unscheduled audits that could have a material 
adverse impact on our results of operations, should an audit result in a negative finding, and we can offer no assurance 
that future Medicaid and Medicare audits will not result in a negative finding. 
  
Our industry is subject to extensive government regulation, and noncompliance by us or our suppliers could harm our 
business. 
  
The repackaging, marketing, sale, and purchase of medications are extensively regulated by federal and state 
governments. As a provider of pharmacy services, our operations are subject to complex and evolving federal and state 
laws and regulations enforced by federal and state governmental agencies, including, but not limited to, the federal 
Controlled Substances Act, the False Claims Act, federal and state Anti-Kickback laws, HIPAA, the Stark Law, the federal 
Civil Monetary Penalty Law, the PDMA, the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and various other state pharmacy laws and 
regulations. In addition, many of the HIV/AIDS medications that we sell receive greater attention from law enforcement 
officials than those medications that are most often dispensed by traditional pharmacies due to the high cost of 
HIV/AIDS medications and the potential for illegal use. If we fail to, or are accused of failing to, comply with applicable 
laws and regulations, we could be subject to penalties that may include exclusion from the Medicare or Medicaid 
programs, fines, requirements to change our practices, and civil or criminal penalties, which could harm our business, 
financial condition, and results of operations. Any disqualification from participating in Medicare or the state Medicaid 
programs would significantly reduce our net sales and our ability to maintain profitability. Our business could also be 
harmed if the entities with which we contract or have business relationships, such as pharmaceutical manufacturers, 
distributors, physicians, HIV/AIDS clinics, or home health agencies are accused of violating laws or regulations. 
  
While we believe we are operating our business in substantial compliance with existing legal requirements material to 
the operation of our business, there are significant uncertainties involving the application of many of these legal 
requirements to our business. Changes in interpretation or enforcement policies could subject our current practices to 
allegation of impropriety or illegality. The applicable regulatory framework is complex and evolving, and the laws are 
very broad in scope. Many of the laws remain open to interpretation and have not been addressed by substantive court 
decisions to clarify their meaning. We are also unable to predict what additional federal or state legislation or regulatory 
initiatives may be enacted in the future relating to our business or the healthcare industry in general, or what effect any 
such legislation or regulation might have on us. Further, we cannot provide any assurance that federal or state 
governments will not impose additional restrictions or adopt interpretations of existing laws that could increase our cost 
of compliance with such laws or reduce our ability to remain profitable. 
  
Federal and state investigations and enforcement actions continue to focus on the healthcare industry, scrutinizing a 
wide range of items such as referral and billing practices, product discount arrangements, dissemination of confidential 
patient information, clinical drug research trials, pharmaceutical marketing programs, and gifts for patients. It is difficult 
to predict how any of the laws implicated in these investigations and enforcement actions may be interpreted to apply 
to our business. Any future investigation may cause publicity, regardless of the eventual result of the investigation, or its 
underlying merits, that would cause potential patients to avoid us, reducing our net sales and profits and causing our 
stock price to decline. 
 
The health of the economy in general and in the markets we serve could adversely affect our business and our 
financial results. 
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Our business is affected by the economy in general, including changes in consumer purchasing power, preferences 
and/or spending patterns. These changes could affect drug utilization trends as well as the financial health and number 
of covered lives of our clients, resulting in an adverse effect on our business and financial results. 
 
In that regard, the current economic recovery has resulted in strengthened drug utilization trends during 2012. It is 
possible that the state of the economy could change and current trends could reverse in the future. A reverse of these 
trends will cause a decline in drug utilization, and dampen demand for pharmaceutical drugs and durable medical 
equipment as well as consumer demand for sundry products sold in our retail store. If this were to occur, our business 
and financial results could be adversely affected. 
 
Further, interest rate fluctuations and changes in capital market conditions may affect our ability to obtain necessary 
financing on acceptable terms, our ability to secure suitable store locations under acceptable terms and our ability to 
execute sale or lease transactions under acceptable terms. 
  
If the merchandise and services that we offer fail to meet customer needs, our sales may be affected. 
 
Our success depends on our ability to offer a superior shopping experience, a quality assortment of available 
merchandise and superior customer service. We must identify, obtain supplies of, and offer to our customers, attractive, 
innovative and high-quality merchandise on a continuous basis. Our products and services must satisfy the needs and 
desires of our customers, whose preferences may change in the future.  If we misjudge either the demand for products 
and services we sell or our customers’ purchasing habits and tastes, we may be faced with excess inventories of some 
products and missed opportunities for products and services we chose not to offer.  In addition, our sales may decline or 
we may be required to sell the merchandise we have obtained at lower prices. This would have a negative effect on our 
business and results of operations. 
 
Our ability to grow our business may be constrained by our inability to find suitable new store locations at acceptable 
prices. 
 
Our ability to grow our business may be constrained if suitable new store locations cannot be identified with lease terms 
or purchase prices that are acceptable to us. We compete with other retailers and businesses for suitable locations for 
our stores. Local land use and other regulations applicable to the types of stores we desire to construct may impact our 
ability to find suitable locations and influence the cost of constructing our stores. The expiration of leases at existing 
store locations may adversely affect us if the renewal terms of those leases are unacceptable to us and we are forced to 
close or relocate stores. Further, changing local demographics at existing store locations may adversely affect revenue 
and profitability levels at those stores. 
 
Our ability to grow our business may be constrained by our inability to obtain adequate permits and licensing for new 
locations. 
 
Our ability to grow our business may be constrained if new locations are not permitted and licensed to conduct ordinary 
operations. Expansion initiatives can be delayed or even canceled due to a failure to acquire certain government agency 
approvals. Such delay or cancellation will have a negative impact on our business and results of operations. 
 
 
Should a product liability issue, recall or personal injury issue arise, inadequate product or other liability insurance 
coverage or our inability to maintain such insurance may result in a material adverse effect on our business and 
financial condition. 
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Products that we sell could become subject to contamination, product tampering, mislabeling, recall or other damage. In 
addition, errors in the dispensing and packaging of pharmaceuticals could lead to serious injury. Product liability or 
personal injury claims may be asserted against us with respect to any of the products or pharmaceuticals we sell or 
services we provide. 
 
If we are not able to market our services effectively to clinics, their affiliated healthcare providers and PDPs, we may 
not be able to grow our patient base as rapidly as we have anticipated. 
 
Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and maintain relationships with clinics and their affiliated 
healthcare providers because each is an important patient referral source for our business. In addition, we also have to 
maintain and continue to establish relationships with Prescription Drug Providers (“PDPs”) so we can continue to fill 
prescriptions for our dual eligible customers who receive prescription drug coverage under Medicare Part D. If we are 
unable to market our services effectively to these clinics, healthcare providers and PDPs, or if our existing relationships 
with clinics and providers are terminated, our ability to grow our patient base will be harmed, which could significantly 
reduce our net sales and our ability to maintain profitability. Additionally, Medicare Part D regulations that strictly limit 
our ability to market to our current and new patients may limit our ability to maintain and grow our current patient 
base. 
 
If we fail to manage our growth or implement changes to our reporting systems effectively, our business could be 
harmed. 
 
 If we are unable to manage our growth effectively, we could incur losses. How we manage our growth will depend, 
among other things, on our ability to adapt our operational, financial and management controls, reporting systems and 
procedures to the demands of a larger business, including the demands of integrating our acquisitions. To manage the 
growth and increasing complexity of our business, we may make modifications to or replace computer and other 
reporting systems, including those that report on our financial results and on which we are substantially dependent. We 
may incur significant financial and resource costs as a result of any such modifications or replacements, and our business 
may be subject to transitional difficulties. The difficulties associated with any such implementation, and any failure or 
delay in the system implementation, could negatively affect our internal control over financial reporting and harm our 
business and results of operations. In addition, we may not be able to successfully hire, train and manage additional 
sales, marketing, customer support and pharmacists quickly enough to support our growth. To provide this support, we 
may need to open additional offices, which will result in additional burdens on our systems and resources and require 
additional capital expenditures. 
 
Our success in identifying and integrating synergistic acquisitions may impact our business and our ability to have 
effective disclosure controls. 
 
As part of our strategy, we continually evaluate acquisition opportunities. There can be no assurance that we will 
complete any future acquisitions or that such transactions, if completed, will be integrated successfully or will contribute 
favorably to our operations and financial condition. The integration of acquisitions includes ensuring that our disclosure 
controls and procedures and our internal control over financial reporting effectively apply to and address the operations 
of newly acquired businesses. We may be required to change our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal 
control over financial reporting to accommodate newly acquired operations, and we may also be required to remediate 
historic weaknesses or deficiencies at acquired businesses.  
 
In addition, acquisitions may expose us to unknown or contingent liabilities of the acquired businesses, including 
liabilities for failure to comply with healthcare or reimbursement laws. While we try to negotiate indemnification 
provisions that we consider to be appropriate for the acquisitions, there can be no assurance that liabilities relating to 
the prior operations of acquired companies will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 
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and results of operations. Furthermore, future acquisitions may result in dilutive issuances of equity securities, 
incurrence of additional debt, and amortization of expenses related to intangible assets, any of which could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
A disruption in our telephone system or our computer system could harm our business. 
  
We receive and take most prescription orders over the telephone and by facsimile. We also rely extensively upon our 
computer system to confirm payor information, patient eligibility and authorizations; to check on medication 
interactions and patient medication history; to facilitate filling and labeling prescriptions for delivery and billing; and to 
help with the collection of payments. Our success depends, in part, upon our ability to promptly fill and deliver complex 
prescription orders as well as on our ability to provide reimbursement management services for our patients and their 
healthcare providers. Any continuing disruption in our telephone, facsimile or computer systems could adversely affect 
our ability to receive and process prescription orders, make deliveries on a timely basis and receive reimbursement from 
our payors. This could adversely affect our relations with the patients and healthcare providers we serve and potentially 
result in a partial reduction in orders from, or a complete loss of, these patients. 
 
We may fail to retain or recruit necessary personnel, and we may be unable to secure the services of consultants. 
  
As of December 31, 2013, we employed 24 persons. We have also engaged consultants to advise us on various aspects 
of our business. Our future performance will depend in part on our ability to successfully integrate newly hired executive 
officers into our management team and our ability to develop an effective working relationship among senior 
management. 
 
RISKS RELATED TO THE SPECIALTY PHARMACY INDUSTRY 
 
There is substantial competition in our industry, and we may not be able to compete successfully. 
  
The specialty pharmacy industry is highly competitive and is continuing to become more competitive. All of the 
medications, supplies and services that we provide are also available from our competitors. Our current and potential 
competitors may include: 
  
   •  Other specialty pharmacy distributors; 
         
   •  Specialty pharmacy divisions of wholesale drug distributors; 
         
   •  Not for profit organizations with specialty pharmacies; 
         
   •  Hospital-based pharmacies; 
         
   •  Local infusion providers; 
         
   •  Other retail pharmacies; 
         
   •  Manufacturers that sell their products both to distributors and directly to clinics and physicians’ offices; and 
         
   •  Hospital-based care centers and other alternate-site healthcare providers. 
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Many specialty patients are currently receiving prescription benefits from non-profit plans such as Ryan White. These 
payors only use non-profit providers to dispense medications to their enrollees. Should there be any changes in the 
environment in the specialty industry that lead more patients to non-profit payor organizations or the services of non-
profit pharmacies become more attractive, the company may not be able to compete successfully. 
 
Many of our competitors have substantially greater resources and marketing staffs and more established operations and 
infrastructure than we have. A significant factor in effective competition will be our ability to maintain and expand our 
relationships with patients, healthcare providers and government and private payors. 
 
If demand for our products and services is reduced, our business and ability to grow would be harmed. 
  
A reduction in demand for HIV/AIDS medications would significantly harm our business, as we would not be able to 
quickly shift our business to provide medications for other diseases or disorders. Reduced demand for our products and 
services could be caused by a number of circumstances, such as: 
  
   •  A cure or vaccine for HIV/AIDS; 
         
   •  The emergence of a new strain of HIV that is resistant to available HIV/AIDS medications; 
         
   •  Shifts to treatment regimens other than those we offer; 
         
   •  New methods of delivery of existing HIV/AIDS medications or of injectable or infusible medications that do not 

require our specialty pharmacy and disease management services; 
         
   •  Recalls of the medications we sell; 
         
   •  Adverse reactions caused by the medications we sell; 
         
   •  The expiration of or challenge to the drug patents on the medications we sell; or 
         
   •  Competing treatment from a new HIV/AIDS medication or from a new injectable or infusible medication or a new 

use of an existing HIV/AIDS, injectable, or infusible medication. 
 
Our revenues could be adversely affected if new drugs or combination therapies are developed and prescribed to our 
patients that have a reimbursement rate less than that of the current drug therapies our patients receive. 
 
 If our patients switch medications to those with lower reimbursement rates or to combination therapies, which 
combine multiple HIV drugs into a single medication, our net sales could decline. Combination therapies reduce the 
number of total prescriptions received by our patients, resulting in reduced average revenues and a decrease in 
dispensing fees per patient. 
 
We rely on a limited number of suppliers for the prescriptions dispensed by our pharmacies, and we could have 
difficulty obtaining sufficient supply of the drugs to fill those prescriptions. 
 
A limited number of manufacturers operating under current Good Manufacturing Practices are capable of 
manufacturing the drugs dispensed by our pharmacies, and the supply of those drugs is limited by allocations from the 
manufacturers. Although we believe we have sufficient supply from such manufacturers and we maintain inventory on 
hand to meet our demand, if our suppliers had problems or delays with their manufacturing operations we may have 
difficulty obtaining sufficient quantities of the drugs required for our business. If we do not receive sufficient quantities 
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from our current suppliers, we may be unable to identify or obtain our required drugs from alternative manufacturers 
on commercially reasonable terms or on a timely basis, which would negatively impact our revenues, reputation and 
business strategy. 
 
If our credit terms with vendors become unfavorable or our relationship with them is terminated, our business could 
be adversely affected. 
 
We depend on existing credit terms from vendors to meet our working capital needs between the times we purchased 
medications from vendors and when we received reimbursement or payment from third-party payors. Our ability to 
grow has been limited in part by our inability to negotiate favorable credit terms from our suppliers. If our position 
changes and we are unable to maintain adequate credit terms or sufficient financing from third-party lenders, we may 
become limited in our ability to continue to increase the volume of medications we need to fill prescriptions. 
 
There are only a few wholesale distributors from which we can purchase the medications we offer to HIV/AIDS patients. 
In the event that any of our vendor agreements terminate or are not renewed, we might not be able to enter into a new 
agreement with another wholesale distributor on a timely basis or on terms favorable to us. Our inability to enter into a 
new supply agreement may cause a shortage of the supply of medications we keep in stock, or we may be required to 
accept pricing and credit terms from a vendor that are less favorable to us than those we currently have. 
 
RISKS RELATED TO THE DURABLE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT INDUSTRY 
  
Non-Compliance With Laws and Regulations Applicable to Our Business and Future Changes in or Interpretations of 
Those Laws and Regulations Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Us. 
  
We are subject to many stringent and frequently changing laws and regulations, and interpretations thereof, at both the 
federal and state levels, requiring compliance with burdensome and complex billing and payment, substantiation and 
record-keeping requirements. Examples of such documentation requirements are contained in the Durable Medical 
Equipment Medicare Administrative Contractor (“DME MAC”) supplier manuals which provide that clinical information 
from the “patient’s medical record” is required to justify the medical necessity for the provision of DME. Some DME 
MACs and other government auditors have recently taken the position, among other things, that the “patient’s medical 
record” refers not to documentation maintained by the DME supplier but instead to documentation maintained by the 
patient’s physician, healthcare facility, or other clinician, and that clinical information created by the DME supplier’s 
personnel and confirmed by the patient’s physician is not sufficient to establish medical necessity. It may be difficult, 
and sometimes impossible, for us to obtain such documentation from other healthcare providers. Also, auditors’ 
interpretations of these policies are inconsistent and subject to individual interpretations leading to high supplier and 
industry error rates. In fact, DME MACs have continued to conduct significant pre-payment reviews across the DME 
industry and have determined a wide range of error rates. For example, error rates for CPAP claims have ranged from 
50% to 80%. DME MACs have repeatedly cited medical necessity documentation insufficiencies as the primary reason 
for claim denials. In addition, certain states have established unique documentation requirements concerning direct 
patient care activities provided by DME suppliers’ staff. In the absence of such documentation, the state may request a 
refund or impose sanctions such as fines. If these or other challenging positions continue to be adopted by auditors, 
DME MACs, states, CMS or its contractors in administering the Medicare program, we have the right to contest these 
positions as being contrary to law. Such appeal processes may be protracted and costly, even when the initial 
determinations are overturned. If these interpretations of the documentation requirements are ultimately upheld, it 
could result in our making significant refunds and other payments to Medicare and/or Medicaid and our future revenues 
from Medicare and/or Medicaid would likely be reduced. We cannot currently predict the adverse impact, if any, that 
these new, more onerous interpretations of the Medicare and/or Medicaid documentation requirements, or revised 
internal operational policies to address them, might have on our relationships with referral sources, operations, cash 
flow and capital resources, but such impact could be material. 
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The federal False Claims Act imposes civil and criminal liability on individuals or entities that submit false or fraudulent 
claims for payment to the government. The federal government and a number of courts also have taken the position 
that claims presented in violation of certain other statutes, including the federal anti-kickback statute or the Omnibus 
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (the “Stark Law”), can be considered a violation of the federal False Claims Act. 
Violations of the federal civil False Claims Act may result in treble damages, civil monetary penalties and exclusion from 
the Medicare, Medicaid and other federally funded healthcare programs. If certain criteria are satisfied, the federal civil 
False Claims Act allows a private individual to bring a qui tam suit on behalf of the government and, if the case is 
successful, to share in any recovery. Federal False Claims Act suits brought directly by the government or private 
individuals against healthcare providers, like us, are increasingly common and are expected to continue to increase. 
  
The Reform Package also includes certain fraud and abuse prevention measures and expands regulatory authorities 
concerning the types of conduct that can result in additional fines and penalties for those healthcare providers who do 
not comply with applicable laws and regulations. The federal government also announced that it will apply real-time 
monitoring technologies to the Medicare claim management process, similar to technologies used in other industries. 
Although we cannot quantify at this time what, if any, impact such processes might have on our relationships with 
referral sources, operations, cash flow and capital resources, such impact could be material. 
  
Financial relationships between us and physicians and other referral sources are also subject to strict limitations under 
laws such as the Stark Law and anti-kickback laws. In addition, strict licensure, accreditation, safety and marketing 
requirements apply to the provision of services, pharmaceuticals and medical equipment. 
  
Violations of these laws and regulations could subject us to civil and criminal enforcement actions; licensure revocation, 
suspension or non-renewal; severe fines; facility shutdowns; repayment of amounts received from third party payors 
and possible exclusion from participation in federal healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. We cannot 
assure you that we are in compliance with all applicable existing laws and regulations or that we will be able to comply 
with any new laws or regulations that may be enacted in the future. In addition, from time to time, we may be the 
subject of investigations or audits or be a party to qui tam or other False Claims Act litigation which alleges violations of 
law. If any of those matters were successfully asserted against us, there could be a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition, and results of operations, cash flow, capital resources, liquidity or prospects. 
  
Changes in public policy, healthcare law, new interpretations of existing laws, or changes in payment methodology may 
have a material effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations, cash flow, capital resources and 
liquidity. 
  
Expanded Government Auditing and Oversight of Medicare and Medicaid Suppliers and More Stringent 
Interpretations by Those Auditors of Regulations and Rules Concerning Billing for Our Services and Products Could 
Have a Material Adverse Effect on Us. 
  
Current law provides for a significant expansion of the government’s auditing and oversight of suppliers who care for 
patients covered by various government healthcare programs. Examples of this expansion include audit programs being 
implemented by the DMEMACs, the Zone Program Integrity Contractors (“ZPICs”), the Recovery Audit Contractors 
(“RACs”) and the Comprehensive Error Rate Testing contractors (“CERTs”) operating under the direction of CMS. We 
work cooperatively with these auditors and have long maintained a process for centrally tracking and managing our 
responses to their audit requests. However, unlike other government programs that are subject to a formal rulemaking 
process, there are only limited publicly-available guidelines and methodologies for determining errors or for providing 
clear and timely communications to Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetics/Orthotics, and Supplies (”DMEPOS’) 
suppliers in connection with these new types of audits. As a result, there is significant lack of clarity regarding the 
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authority of the auditors, their expectations for document production requested during audits and the methodology for 
determining errors and calculating error rates. 
  
Along with other healthcare providers and suppliers, we have recently been subject to a significant increase in the 
number of audits conducted under these new programs. Many of these audits have ascribed error rates to our Company 
that are significantly higher than we, and others in the industry, have experienced in the past. In some cases, these high 
error rates appear to be based on the auditors’ incomplete or erroneous review of our submitted documentation, our 
inability to retrieve physician or hospital documentation from their records, the auditors’ enforcement of requirements 
for documentation for patients begun on service during a time period when lesser levels of documentation were 
accepted practice, or unclear scoring methodologies used by the auditors, among other factors. In other instances, high 
error rates have resulted from the auditors’ use of more stringent interpretations of the types of medical necessity 
documentation required for CMS to pay for the services we provide. We have appealed the results of many of these 
audits and made changes to our operating policies and procedures, but cannot predict the ultimate impact that the 
government’s expanded and more stringent auditing, or our policies, may have on our business, financial conditions or 
results of operations. 
  
We have been informed by these auditors that other healthcare providers and all suppliers of certain DMEPOS product 
categories are expected to experience further increased scrutiny from these audit programs. When a government 
auditor ascribes a high error rate to one or more locations, it generally results in protracted pre-payment claims review, 
payment delays, refunds and other payments to the government and/or our need to request more documentation from 
referral sources than has historically been required. It may also result in additional audit activity in other locations of 
ours in that state or DME MAC jurisdiction. Our error rate, aggregated with other DMEPOS suppliers in the industry, is 
then reported to Medicare contractors and Congress. Further, DMEMACs have continued to conduct extensive pre-
payment reviews across the DME industry and, for example, have found that error rates for CPAP claims have ranged 
from 50% to 80%. We cannot currently predict the adverse impact, if any that these new audits, methodologies and 
interpretations might have on our operations, cash flow and capital resources, but such adverse impact could be 
material. 
 
Our Failure to Maintain Required Licenses Could Impact Our Operations. 
  
We are required to maintain a significant number of state and/or federal licenses for our operations and facilities. 
Certain employees—primarily those with clinical expertise in pharmacy, nursing, respiratory therapy and nutrition—are 
required to maintain licenses in the states in which they practice. We manage the facility licensing function centrally. In 
addition, individual clinical employees are responsible for obtaining, maintaining and renewing their professional 
licenses and we also have processes in place designed to notify branch or pharmacy managers of renewal dates for the 
clinical employees under their supervision. State and federal licensing requirements are complex and often open to 
subjective interpretation by various regulatory agencies. Accurate licensure is also a critical threshold issue for the 
Medicare competitive bidding program. From time to time, we may also become subject to new or different licensing 
requirements due to legislative or regulatory requirements developments or changes in our business, and such 
developments may cause us to make further changes in our business, the results of which may be material. Although we 
believe we have appropriate systems in place to monitor licensure, violations of licensing requirements may occur and 
our failure to acquire or maintain appropriate licensure for our operations, facilities and clinicians could result in 
interruptions in our operations, refunds to state and/or federal payors, sanctions or fines or the inability to serve 
Medicare beneficiaries in competitive bidding markets which could have an adverse material impact on our business, 
financial condition, results of operation, cash flow, capital resources and liquidity. 
 
Our Failure to Maintain Accreditation Could Impact Our Operations. 
 



 
 

 

22 

Accreditation is required by most of our managed care payors and became a mandatory requirement for all Medicare 
DMEPOS providers effective October 1, 2009.  If we lose accreditation, or if any of our new branches are unable to 
become accredited, our failure to maintain accreditation or become accredited could have a material adverse effect on 
our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flow, capital resources and liquidity. 
 
Our Failure to Obtain or Maintain a Medicare Competitive Bid Contract. 
 
As of December 31, 2010, a Medicare competitive bid contract is required to supply certain DME and DME related 
products to Medicare Part B beneficiaries within a competitive bid area.  If we lose such a bid, our failure to maintain 
such a bid, or become affiliated with a bid winner could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition, results of operations, cash flow, capital resources and liquidity. For the 2014-2016 re-bid period, the Company 
does not have a Medicare competitive bid contract for the South Florida area. 
  
Our Failure to Establish and Maintain Relationships With Hospital and Physician Referral Sources May Cause Our 
Revenue to Decline. 
 
Our success is significantly dependent on referrals from hospital and physician sources. If we are unable to successfully 
establish new referral sources and maintain strong relationships with our current referral sources, or if efforts to 
increase the skill level and effectiveness of our sales force fail, our revenues may decline. 
  
Changes in Medical Equipment Technology and Development of New Treatments May Cause Our Current Equipment 
or Services to Become Obsolete. 
  
We evaluate changes in home medical equipment technology and treatments on an ongoing basis for purposes of 
determining the feasibility of replacing or supplementing items currently included in the patient service equipment 
inventory and services that we offer our customers. The selection of medical equipment and services we offer is 
formulated on the basis of a variety of factors, including overall quality, functional reliability, availability of supply, payor 
reimbursement policies, product features, labor costs associated with the technology, acquisition, repair and ownership 
costs and overall patient and referral source demand, as well as patient therapeutic and lifestyle benefits. 
Manufacturers continue to invest in research and development to introduce new products to the marketplace. It is 
possible that major changes in available technology, payor benefit or coverage policies related to those changes, or the 
preferences of patients and referral sources may cause our current product offerings to become less competitive or 
obsolete, and it will be necessary for us to adapt to those changes. Unanticipated changes could cause us to incur 
increased capital expenditures and accelerated equipment write-offs, and could force us to alter our sales, operations 
and marketing strategies. 
  
Our Operations Involve the Transport of Compressed and Liquid Oxygen, Which Carries an Inherent Risk of Rupture or 
Other Accidents With the Potential to Cause Substantial Loss. 
  
Our operations are subject to the many hazards inherent in the transportation of medical gas products and compressed 
and liquid oxygen, including ruptures, leaks and fires. These risks could result in substantial losses due to personal injury 
or loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of property and equipment and pollution or other environmental 
damage and may result in curtailment or suspension of our related operations. If a significant accident or event occurs, it 
could adversely affect our business, financial position and results of operations. Additionally, corrective action plans, 
fines or other sanctions may be levied by government regulators who oversee transportation of hazardous materials 
such as compressed or liquid oxygen. 
 
There are a number of additional business risks which could adversely affect our financial results. 
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Many other factors could adversely affect our financial results, including: 
 
   • If we are unsuccessful in establishing effective advertising, marketing and promotional programs, our sales or 

sales margins could be negatively affected. 
   • Our success depends on our continued ability to attract and retain store, management and other professional 

personnel, and the loss of key personnel could have an adverse effect on the results of our operations, financial 
condition or cash flow. 

   • We may not be able to successfully and timely implement new computer systems and technology or business 
processes, or may experience disruptions or delays to the computer systems we depend on to manage our 
ordering, pricing, point-of-sale, inventory replenishment and other processes, which could adversely impact our 
operations and our ability to attract and retain customers. 

   • Severe weather conditions, terrorist activities, health epidemics or pandemics or the prospect of these events 
can impact our store operations or damage our facilities in affected areas or have an adverse impact on 
consumer confidence levels and spending in our store. 

   • The long-term effects of climate change on general economic conditions and the pharmacy industry in particular 
are unclear, and changes in the supply, demand or available sources of energy may affect the availability or cost 
of goods and services, including natural resources, necessary to run our business. 

   • The products we sell are sourced from a wide variety of domestic and international vendors, and any future 
inability to find qualified vendors and access products in a timely and efficient manner could adversely impact 
our business. 

  
The foregoing is not a comprehensive listing and there can be no assurance that we have correctly identified and 
appropriately assessed all factors affecting the business. As such, we refer you to the “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” which includes our “Cautionary Statement Concerning 
Forward-Looking Statements.” 
 
RISKS RELATING TO OUR STOCK 
 
We will seek to raise additional funds in the future, which may be dilutive to stockholders or impose operational 
restrictions. 
  
We expect to seek to raise additional capital in the future to help fund development of our proposed expansion. If we 
raise additional capital through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the percentage ownership of our 
current stockholders will be reduced. We may also enter into strategic transactions and/or compensate consultants or 
settle outstanding payables using equity that may be dilutive. Our stockholders may experience additional dilution in net 
book value per share and any additional equity securities may have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of 
the holders of our common stock. If we cannot raise additional funds, we will have to delay development activities of 
our expansion plans. 
  
We are controlled by our current officers, directors, and principal stockholders. 
  
Currently, our directors, executive officers, and principal stockholders beneficially own a majority of our common stock. 
As a result, they will be able to exert substantial influence over the election of our board of directors and the vote on 
issues submitted to our stockholders. As of the date of this filing, our officers, directors and principal stockholders 
beneficially owned 23,169,647 shares (70.8%) of our common stock, which number excludes shares of common stock 
issuable upon pursuant to certain employment and consulting agreements held by our officers, directors and principal 
stockholders.  Due to the fact that our common stock is “thinly traded”, the sale of these shares by our officers, directors 
and/or principal stockholders could have a severely adverse effect on the market for our common stock and our share 
price. 
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Our shares of common stock are thinly traded, so stockholders may be unable to sell at or near ask prices or at all if 
they need to sell shares to raise money or otherwise desire to liquidate their shares. 
  
Our common stock is “thinly-traded,” meaning that the number of persons interested in purchasing our common stock 
at or near ask prices at any given time may be relatively small or non-existent. This situation is attributable to a number 
of factors, including the fact that we are a small company that is relatively unknown to stock analysts, stock brokers, 
institutional investors and others in the investment community that generate or influence sales volume, and that even if 
we came to the attention of such persons, they tend to be risk-averse and would be reluctant to follow an unproven 
company such as ours or purchase or recommend the purchase of our shares until such time as we became more 
seasoned and viable. As a consequence, there may be periods of several days or more when trading activity in our 
shares is minimal or nonexistent, as compared to a seasoned issuer which has a large and steady volume of trading 
activity that will generally support continuous sales without an adverse effect on share price. We cannot give 
stockholders any assurance that a broader or more active public trading market for our common shares will develop or 
be sustained, or that current trading levels will be sustained. 
 
We are subject to the penny stock rules which will make our securities more difficult to sell. 
 
We are subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules because our securities sell below $5.00 per share.  The penny stock rules 
require broker-dealers to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the SEC which provides 
information about penny stocks and the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market.  The broker-dealer must 
also provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-
dealer and its salesperson, and monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the 
customer’s account.  In addition, the bid and offer quotations, and the broker-dealer and salesperson compensation 
information must be given to the customer orally or in writing prior to completing the transaction and must be given to 
the customer in writing before or with the customer’s confirmation. 
 
Furthermore, the penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction, the broker dealer must make a special written 
determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written 
agreement to the transaction.  The penny stock rules are burdensome and may reduce purchases of any offerings and 
reduce the trading activity for our securities.  As long as our securities are subject to the penny stock rules, the holders 
of such securities will find it more difficult to sell their securities. 
  
Our compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and SEC rules concerning internal controls may be time consuming, 
difficult and costly. 
  
Although individual members of our management team have experience as officers of publicly traded companies, much 
of that experience came prior to the adoption of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. It may be time consuming, difficult and 
costly for us to develop and implement the internal controls and reporting procedures required by Sarbanes-Oxley. We 
may need to hire additional financial reporting, internal controls and other finance staff in order to develop and 
implement appropriate internal controls and reporting procedures. If we are unable to comply with Sarbanes-Oxley’s 
internal controls requirements, we may not be able to obtain the independent accountant certifications that Sarbanes-
Oxley Act requires publicly-traded companies to obtain. 
  
We cannot assure you that the common stock will be liquid or that it will remain listed on a securities exchange. 
 
We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain the listing standards of the OTCBB or any other national 
market. If we are delisted from the OTCBB then our common stock will trade, if at all, only on the pink sheets, and then 
only if one or more registered broker-dealer market makers comply with quotation requirements. In addition, delisting 
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of our common stock could further depress our stock price, substantially limit liquidity of our common stock and 
materially adversely affect our ability to raise capital on terms acceptable to us, or at all. Delisting could also have other 
negative results, including the potential loss of confidence by suppliers and employees, the loss of institutional investor 
interest and fewer business development opportunities. 
 
We have never paid dividends. 
  
We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any for the foreseeable future. 
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
On July 26, 2013, the Company was named as a respondent to a complaint issued by AmerisourceBergen Drug 
Corporation. The complaint was filed in Pennsylvania and alleges among other things a failure by PharmCo, LLC to pay 
for prescription drugs furnished to PharmCo, LLC pursuant to a credit agreement dated April 18, 2011. On October 13, 
2013 the Company filed a statement of answer responding to the allegations. The Company believes among other things 
that AmerisourceBergen instituted overly restrictive purchasing policies that impacted the Company’s ability to service 
its patients and such policy is not present in the cited credit agreement. On August 21, 2014, the Company entered into 
a settlement agreement pending the outcome of a planned 3A-10 transaction. 
 
The Company has accrued the full value of invoices due to AmerisourceBergen plus legal expenses and believes that the 
claim will be settled for that amount or less. The total value of outstanding AmerisourceBergen invoices is approximately 
$227,000 and is included on the consolidated balance sheets under accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
 
On November 18, 2013, TCA Global Credit Master Fund, L.P. (“TCA”) filed a complaint against the Company and 
PharmCo in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida. The complaint alleges, among other 
things, that the Company is in default of that certain First Amendment to Certain Agreements effective as of June 4, 
2013 by and between the Company and TCA and that certain Replacement, Amended and Restated Promissory Note 
issued by the Company in favor of TCA. In addition, the Complaint alleges that PharmCo is in breach of that certain 
Acknowledgement and Affirmation of Guaranty Agreement by and between PharmCo and TCA. TCA sought to recover 
$687,176 plus interest, costs, attorneys and to foreclose on the assets pledged by the Company and PharmCo in 
connection with the transaction.  
 
As of December 31, 2012, the Company has recorded $593,007 in principal and $20,000 in accrued interest in 
connection with this note. The difference between what is recorded at December 31, 2012 and the amount of the claim 
made by TCA includes accrued interest for 2013, fees, penalties, and legal costs that are under dispute. As these 
differences are in relation to the notice of default in 2013, they will be accrued in 2013. 
 
On April 8, 2014, The United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida dismissed the cased without 
prejudice. On May 23, 2014, the Company entered into a settlement agreement pending the outcome of a planned 3A-
10 transaction, which would reduce the outstanding debt to $575,000. See Notes 6, 7, and 12. 
  
The Company believes it has recorded the full value of debt due to TCA on the consolidated balance sheets under 
convertible notes payable and believes that the claim will be settled for that amount or less. It has not been deemed 
necessary to accrue any additional contingencies in relation to this claim at this time. 
 
On August 22, 2014 the Company entered into an agreement with Tarpon Bay Partners LLC, for the purchase of 
$1,826,005.16 in past due debt which includes debts payable to AmerisourceBergen, TCA, individual note holders, 
related parties and assorted past due amounts for accounts payable from the company for the purposes of executing a 
3A-10 Transaction that would alleviate the Company’s debt burden. Certain vendors agreed to the purchase of their 
debt by Tarpon Bay, including TCA. The settlement of such debt is pending a proposed 3A-10 Transaction, which 
received judicial approval on September 3, 2014 pursuant to a complaint filed with the Circuit Court of the Second 
Judicial Circuit in Leon County, Florida on June 24, 2014. There is no guarantee at this time that the 3A-10 transaction 
will be successful in alleviating the company’s debt.  
  
Management believes that obligations recorded on its consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2013 and December 
31, 2012 were adequate based on its assessment of the ongoing complaints. 
 



 
 

 

27 

Other than the matters described above, we are currently not involved in any other litigation that we believe could have 
a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.  There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry 
or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending 
or, to the knowledge of the executive officers of our company or any of our subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting 
our company, our common stock, any of our subsidiaries or of our companies or our subsidiaries’ officers or directors in 
their capacities as such, in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect. 
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASE OF EQUITY 
SECURITIES. 
 
(a) Market Information 
 
Our common stock trades on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “RXMD” since April 12, 2011.   Prior to this, our 
common stock traded under the symbol “PRTR” on the OTC Bulletin Board since 11/21/2008. The following table states 
the range of the high and low trading prices per share of our common stock for each of the calendar quarters during the 
last two calendar years. These quotations represent inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, markdown, or 
commission, and may not represent actual transactions. The last price of our common stock as reported on the OTC 
Bulletin Board on December 31, 2013 was $0.07 per share. 
  
      High       Low    

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012                 
Fourth quarter    $ 0.07       $ 0.07    
Third quarter    $  0.34       $ 0.34    
Second quarter    $ 0.04       $ 0.04    
First quarter    $ 0.11       $ 0.11    
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012                 
Fourth quarter    $ 0.48       $ 0.06    
Third quarter    $ 0.48       $ 0.42    
Second quarter    $ 0.55       $ 0.40    
First quarter    $ 0.52       $ 0.30    
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011                         
Fourth quarter    $ 0.51       $ 0.35    
Third quarter    $ 0.51       $ 0.35    
Second quarter    $ 0.51       $ 0.40    
First quarter    $ 0.51       $ 0.20    
 
(b) Holders 
 
As of September 25, 2014, there were approximately 181 stockholders of record of our common stock. This number 
does not include beneficial owners from whom shares are held by nominees in street name. 
 
(c) Dividend Policy 
  
We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock to date, and we have no intention of paying cash dividends 
in the foreseeable future. Whether we declare and pay dividends is determined by our board of directors at their 
discretion, subject to certain limitations imposed under Delaware corporate law. The timing, amount and form of 
dividends, if any, will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements 
and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. 
  
(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans 
 
The Company does not currently have an equity compensation plan in effect. 
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Uses of Proceeds from Registered Securities 
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On April 30, 2012, the Company issued a secured convertible note for $500,000. The note bears interest of 12%, 6% of 
which is paid monthly and 6% of which is accrued and due in a balloon payment at maturity. The note has a default 
interest rate of 18%, a maturity date of April 30, 2013 and is secured by all of the assets of the Company and its 
subsidiaries.  The debt holder is entitled, at their option, to convert all or part of the principal and accrued interest into 
shares of the Company’s common stock. The note is convertible at 95% of the volume weighted average price of the 
Company’s common stock for the 5 days preceding conversion. The embedded conversion feature within this note 
classifies it as a derivative liability. 
 
The Company incurred debt acquisition costs of $202,500 in connection with the note; for which shares of common 
stock valued at approximately $7,000 were issued, a note for approximately $93,000 was issued, and the remaining 
$102,500 was paid in cash. 
 
On April 23, 2013 the Company entered into a $300,000 1-year 10% convertible note with an investor. Under the terms 
of the Note, the investor has the option to convert their Notes into shares of the Company’s common stock at an 
exercise price of $0.40/share. In connection with this note, the Company incurred debt acquisition costs of 1,000,000 
shares of stock valued at $0.11 (the closing price on the OTCBB on April 13, 2013). The securities are restricted 
securities, and may not be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended (the “Act”), or an exemption thereunder. The securities were offered and sold in reliance on the exemption 
from registration under Section 4(2) of the Act. The offering was not conducted in connection with a public offering, and 
no public solicitation or advertisement was made or relied upon by the individual in connection with the offering. 

 
There were no other sales of unregistered securities during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 other 
than those transactions previously reported to the SEC on the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q and current 
reports on Form 8-K. 
 
Rule 10B-18 Transactions 
 
During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were no repurchases of the Company’s common stock by 
the Company. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS 
 
2012 AND 2013 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
As we entered the 2012 fiscal year, our business plan was to take advantage of our competitive bidding contract with 
Medicare to provide DME in South Florida and to enhance our long term care prescription services division. Throughout 
the year we have taken steps to execute on this plan by increasing our marketing efforts and moving forward on 
expansion opportunities. In addition, we sought out new sources of revenue and found that the specialty/anti-retroviral 
medication market to be underserviced in South Florida. However, certain set-backs took place within the year that 
prevented the Company from fully achieving its goals and business plan objectives.  
 
On April 30, 2012, we entered into security agreements with TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP, a Cayman Islands 
limited partnership (“TCA”), related to a $500,000 12% 1-year convertible promissory note.  The Security Agreements 
grant to TCA a continuing, first priority security interest in all of the Company’s assets, wheresoever located and 
whether now existing or hereafter arising or acquired.  
 
Additionally, we entered into the Equity Agreement with TCA.  Pursuant to the terms of the Equity Agreement, for a 
period of 2 years commencing on the date of effectiveness of the Registration Statement (as defined below), TCA shall 
commit to purchase up to $2,000,000 of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, pursuant to 
Advances (as defined below), covering the Registrable Securities (as defined below).  The purchase price of the Shares 
under the Equity Agreement was equal to 95% of the average daily volume weighted average price of the Company’s 
common stock during the 5 consecutive trading days after the Company delivers to TCA an Advance notice in writing 
requiring TCA to advance funds to us, subject to the terms of the Equity Agreement. The “Registrable Securities” include 
the Shares and securities issued or issuable with respect to the Shares by way of exchange, stock dividend or stock split 
or in connection with a combination of shares, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or other reorganization or 
otherwise. (On November 18, 2013, the Company was served with a notice of default on the convertible note, details of 
which are incorporated by reference to LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.) 
 
The convertible note along with the Equity Agreement with TCA was expected to fund our current expansion initiatives, 
which includes the modernization of our main operating location and the build-out and start-up capital needed to begin 
operations at Opa-locka and North Shore. However, events taking place following the execution of the agreement 
prompted the company to utilize most of the proceeds from the convertible note towards current operating needs and 
further diminished our ability to realize the benefits presented by TCA’s equity facility.  
 
The first of these events was the receipt of an SEC comment letter on May 10, 2012. Pursuant to the comments, we 
began a year-long re-audit of the Company’s 2010 and 2011 financial statements, to reclassify the merger that occurred 
on October 21, 2010 between PharmCo, LLC and Progressive Training, Inc. as a reverse recapitalization as opposed to a 
direct acquisition as it was originally presented. From the date of the SEC comment letter to the conclusion of the 
restatement process on April 1, 2013, the investing public could not rely on the Company’s filed financial reports. As 
such, we were unable to take advantage of the TCA equity facility.  
 
Following the SEC comment letter, on June 11, 2012, we terminated the employment of Andy Subachan, our Chief 
Operating Officer. We  took this action after our subsidiary, PharmCo, was notified on June 9, 2012 by the State of 
Florida Agency for Health Care Administration (“AHCA”) that the Company’s COO had pleaded guilty to violating federal 
health care anti-kickback statutes at an assisted living facility owned and managed by him, but completely unrelated to 
the Company and its business.  
 
As part of the State’s letter to PharmCo, the State indicated that it was terminating PharmCo's participation in the 
State’s Medicaid program; however after immediate discussions with both AHCA and Medicaid, the parties agreed that 



 
 

 

31 

we would be allowed to continue under the Medicaid program provided Mr. Subachan divested himself of his equity 
interest in the Company. 
 
On July 12, 2012, PharmCo received a letter from AHCA’s Medicaid Program Integrity department (“MPI”) indicating that 
Mr. Subachan’s continued status as a “principal officer or affiliated person” of the Company necessitated Medicaid’s 
“need to withhold payments”, but that PharmCo could still bill Medicaid and would receive payment once the issue was 
resolved.  However, due to what Medicaid indicated were system protocol within its systems, once MPI placed a hold on 
payments, PharmCo was not able to bill Medicaid claims. Notwithstanding, PharmCo continued to fill prescriptions for 
customers who were insured by Medicaid.  
 
To rectify the situation, PharmCo was requested to provide documentation showing that Mr. Subachan was no longer a 
beneficial owner of any of the Company’s shares. On July 31, 2012, Mr. Subachan agreed to return 12,208,432 shares of 
the Company’s common stock and the Company agreed to hold Mr. Subachan harmless and not file suit against him for 
his actions. However, we did not indemnify him from other legal action(s).  
 
On August 17, 2012, in a written agreement received from AHCA, PharmCo’s termination from the State’s Medicaid 
program was rescinded. PharmCo will receive all payments held by Medicaid, as well as be allowed to bill for and receive 
payment for medications it dispensed. During this period, we were forced to use the funds raised from TCA to cover 
PharmCo’s operating needs. 
 
In 2011, our competitive bidding contract became effective for the sale of durable medical equipment. Through the first 
two quarters of 2011 we ramped up marketing efforts. While our sales were increasing, Medicare, in an effort to stem 
the tide of billing fraud, instituted a review process on nearly all sales of hospital beds and oxygen products. This has led 
to a very high denial rate on reviewed claims. Our cash flow from the DME division was significantly impacted as 
reimbursement payments took up to a year to collect if collectable at all. The Company cut its DME sales force to 
minimal levels and changed its processing policies to meet the review demands of Medicare. On or around August 2012, 
we utilized several consultants to determine how best to remove PharmCo from Medicare pre-payment review. On 
August 30, 2012, we were notified that it was successful in its compliance improvement and was removed from pre-
payment review and process audit. However, all items billed and denied under the Medicare review and audit process 
remained denied after the Company was removed.  
 
On August 27, 2012, we hired 2 new executive management personnel to lead the Company as it recovered from the 
difficulties of the prior quarters. Mr. Avraham Friedman stepped down as Chief Executive Officer and was replaced by 
Mr. Vernon Watson and Ms. Shital Parikh Mars became the Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Friedman became the 
Company’s Chief Compliance Officer. Shortly, after the new management team started, we signed agreements to service 
several long-term care facilities in the South Florida area. However, it was determined that our current operating 
location would not be suitable for the increased volume in long-term care prescriptions. Limited capital and space 
prevented us from hiring new personnel to handle the increased demand. It was decided in December 2012, to transfer 
these prescriptions to a specialized long-term care pharmacy.  
 
In the second and third quarter of 2011, we targeted two additional South Florida retail locations which were scheduled 
to open in the first and third quarter of 2012, respectively.  The first of these locations is in the City of Opa -locka, FL. 
Management believes that the city’s pharmacy needs are underserved, specifically its seniors living facilities and medical 
professional communities. The second location is across from North Shore Hospital in Miami, FL. This location was 
selected because of the lack of pharmacy services offered at North Shore Hospital and the close proximity of a new 
outpatient clinic (being built adjacent to this new location.) Management also believes that as with its proposed Opa 
Locka location, the North Shore location will benefit from long term care and senior living facilities in the immediate 
area.  
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Delays in the completion of these locations were a result of capital diverted to operating expenses of the main location 
and in the processing of government permits, licenses and approvals. We had completed construction of Opa-locka in 
December of 2012, and were awaiting final licensures from the DEA. On June 5, 2014, PharmCo 780, Inc. withdrew its 
application for a DEA license. PharmCo 780 is considering filing a new application for licensure on 2015 for 
reconsideration. The Opa-locka, FL location is currently being used to provide free HIV/STD screenings to the general 
public (SEE Notes to the Financial Statements Note 11- Commitments and Contingencies and Note 12 – Subsequent 
Events). 
 
In 2013, we received notification from the management of the North Shore property, that the city had denied zoning of 
the location for a large retail pharmacy operation. On April 26, 2014 the company terminated the lease without penalty 
for the previously proposed North Shore location. The lease was terminated due to insurmountable zoning and 
permitting restrictions placed on the site. The location in North Shore, FL was approximately 1,600 square feet (SEE 
Notes to the Financial Statements Note 11- Commitments and Contingencies and Note 12 – Subsequent Events).  
 
On April 23, 2013, the Company entered into a $300,000 1-year 10% convertible note with an investor. Under the terms 
of the Note, the investor has the option to convert the Note into shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise 
price of $0.40/share. In connection with this note, the Company incurred debt issue costs of 1,000,000 shares of stock 
valued at the closing price on the OTCBB on April 13, 2013, which was $0.11. The securities are restricted securities, and 
may not be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 
“Act”), or an exemption thereunder. The securities were offered and sold in reliance on the exemption from registration 
under Section 4(2) of the Act. The offering was not conducted in connection with a public offering, and no public 
solicitation or advertisement was made or relied upon by the individual in connection with the offering. 
 
Effective June 4, 2013, the Company entered into a first amendment to certain agreements (the “Amendment”) with TCA 
Global Credit Master Fund, LP, a Cayman Islands limited partnership (“TCA”) 
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Amendment, the Company issued that certain replacement, amended and restated 
promissory note (the “Amended and Restated Note”) in favor of TCA in the principal aggregate amount of $623,007.16, 
which replaced, amended and restated the convertible promissory note originally issued to TCA on April 30, 2012 in the 
aggregate principal amount of $500,000 in its entirety.  The Amended and Restated Note bears interest at a rate of twelve 
percent (12%) per annum and matures on November 1, 2013. The Amended and Restated Note is convertible into shares 
of the Company’s common stock at a price equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the average daily volume weighted 
average price of the Company’s common stock during the five (5) trading days immediately prior to the date of conversion 
and it may be prepaid in whole or in part at the Company’s option without penalty. 
 
In addition, the Amendment amends that certain Committed Equity Facility Agreement dated as of March 30, 2012 (the 
“CEF”), by and between the Company and TCA to, among other things, amend certain definitions of the CEF and amend 
and restate Article II of the CEF related to the mechanics for advances. 
 
As further consideration for TCA entering into and structuring the Amendment, the Company paid a fee to TCA by issuing 
1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, valued at $45,000. 
 
Further, in connection with the Company’s issuance of the Amended and Restated Note, PharmCo, LLC entered into an 
acknowledgement and affirmation of guaranty agreement (the “Affirmation of Guaranty”) pursuant to which PharmCo 
affirmed that certain guaranty agreement it previously executed and delivered to TCA on March 30, 2012. 
 
On July 26, 2013, the Company was named as a respondent to a complaint issued by AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation. 
The complaint was filed in Pennsylvania and alleges among other things a failure by PharmCo, LLC to pay for prescription 
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drugs furnished to PharmCo, LLC pursuant to a credit agreement dated April 18, 2011. On October 13, 2013 the Company 
filed a statement of answer responding to the allegations. The Company believes among other things that 
AmerisourceBergen instituted overly restrictive purchasing policies that impacted the Company’s ability to service its 
patients and such policy is not present in the cited credit agreement. On August 21, 2014, the Company entered into a 
settlement agreement pending the outcome of a planned 3A-10 transaction (SEE Notes to the Financial Statements Note 
11- Commitments and Contingencies and Note 12 – Subsequent Events). 
 
The Company has accrued the full value of invoices due to AmerisourceBergen and the claim was settled for that amount. 
The total value of outstanding AmerisourceBergen invoices is approximately $227,000 and is included on the consolidated 
balance sheets under accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
 
Management believes that obligations recorded on its consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2012 were adequate 
based on its assessment of the ongoing complaint. 
 
On November 18, 2013, TCA Global Credit Master Fund, L.P. (“TCA”) filed a complaint against the Company and PharmCo 
in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida.  The complaint alleges, among other things, that the 
Company is in default of that certain First Amendment to Certain Agreements effective as of June 4, 2013 by and between 
the Company and TCA and that certain Replacement, Amended and Restated Promissory Note issued by the Company in 
favor of TCA.  In addition, the Complaint alleges that PharmCo is in breach of that certain Acknowledgement and 
Affirmation of Guaranty Agreement by and between PharmCo and TCA.  TCA sought to recover $687,176.35 plus interest, 
costs, attorneys and to foreclose on the assets pledged by the Company and PharmCo in connection with the transaction.   
 
On April 8, 2014, The United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida dismissed the cased without prejudice. 
On May 23, 2014, the Company entered into a settlement agreement pending the outcome of a planned 3A-10 
transaction, which would reduce the outstanding debt to $575,000 (SEE Notes to the Financial Statements Note 11- 
Commitments and Contingencies and Note 12 – Subsequent Events). 
 
The Company has accrued the full value of debt due to TCA on the consolidated balance sheets under convertible notes 
payable. It has not been deemed necessary to accrue any additional contingencies in relation to this claim at this time. 
 
We have grown the specialty pharmacy segment through grassroots marketing efforts targeted at physician groups and 
other referral sources. Overall our gross profit margin on specialty pharmacy services has been impacted by two primary 
factors: high medication costs and low reimbursements rates by Medicare and Medicaid. Specialty medication costs are 
notoriously high, but we believe this factor can be mitigated by acquiring bulk buying rates with wholesalers and 
improving our cash flow position by taking advantage of purchasing terms. Government payors are under increasing 
pressure to cut costs and lower reimbursement rates across the board. We do not see an opportunity for improvement 
in this trend for the foreseeable future. However, though the profit margin is lower than some of our other business 
segments, we believe there is much to be gained by enhancing our efforts in the arena and significantly growing our 
presence in the industry.  
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Net revenues increased 22% for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to year ended December 31, 2011, 
from approximately $8.24 million to approximately $10.08 million. Net revenues decreased 7% for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 as compared to year ended December 31, 2012, from approximately $10.08 million to 
approximately $9.33 million. This decrease in net revenues for 2013 was due primarily to a ramp down of DME sales. 
Pharmacy revenues represented approximately 89% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 88% 
of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 and the year ended December 31, 2011. DME revenues 
represented 11% of total revenues in 2013 and 12% each year 2012 and 2011.  
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Net loss from continuing operations before income taxes increased 634% for the year ended December 31, 2012 as 
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011, from approximately $.25 million to approximately $1.98 million. Net 
loss from continuing operations before income taxes decreased 71% for the year ended December 31, 2013 as 
compared to the year ended December 31, 2012, from approximately $1.98 million to approximately $.59 million. This 
increase in net loss was substantially due to approximately $1.2 million in bad debt expense, significant decrease in 
gross profitability as a result of an increase in sales of anti-retroviral medications, decreased sales from cash paying 
customers, and decreased sales as a result of Medicare’s DME review.   
 
Gross margin as a percent of sales decreased from 45% for the year ended December 31, 2011 to 28% for the year 
ended December 31, 2012 and to 22% for the year ended December 31, 2013. Overall margins were negatively impacted 
by increased sales of anti-retroviral medications which carry a low gross margin, decreased sales from cash paying 
customers which contributed a higher gross margin, and decreased sales as a result of Medicare’s DME review which 
also has a significantly high gross margin than pharmacy sales. 
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 16% from $3.84 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to 
$4.46 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 and decreased 39% to $2.73 million for the year ended December 
31, 2013.  Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales for the years ended December 31, 2013, 
2012, and 2011 were 29%, 44% and 47% respectively. The increase in SG&A was directly attributable to the cost of being 
maintaining the public entity, the change in our business model and increases in bad debt expense of approximately 
$1.2 million. The decrease and SG&A expenses were due primarily to staffing decreases and other cost cutting 
measures. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
Cash on hand at December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $58,810, $7,357, and $88,874 respectively. Net cash used by 
operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $441,104, $391,753, and $106,848 
respectively. When compared to the prior year, cash from operating activities decreased as a result of lower net 
earnings, decreased revenues from cash paying customers, and the increased cost of sales of the specialty pharmacy 
segment. 
 
Net cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $36,106. Net cash used in investing 
activities was $41,356 for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to net cash used in investing activities of 
$356,390 for the year ended December 31, 2011.  
 
Net cash provided by financing activities was $456,451 for the year ended December 31, 2013 and $351,592 for the year 
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $134,080 for the year ended 
December 31, 2011. When compared to the prior year, cash from financing activities increased due in large part to the 
debt financing conducted with TCA Global Credit Master Fund, LP, and certain other investors and related parties. 
 
Our continued operations will primarily depend on whether we are able to generate revenues and profits and/or raise 
additional funds through various potential sources, such as equity and debt financing. Such additional funds may not 
become available on acceptable terms and there can be no assurance that any additional funding that we do obtain will 
be sufficient to meet our needs in the long term. We will continue to fund operations from cash on hand and through 
the similar sources of capital previously described. We can give no assurances that any additional capital that we are 
able to obtain will be sufficient to meet our needs. 
 
Current and Future Financing Needs 
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We have incurred an accumulated deficit of $605,936 through December 31, 2012 and $1,191,353 through December 
31, 2013. We have spent, and expect to continue to spend, substantial amounts in connection with implementing our 
business strategy.  
  
Based on our current plans, we believe that our current cash will not be sufficient to enable us to meet our planned 
operating needs. 
  
However, the actual amount of funds we will need to operate is subject to many factors, some of which are beyond our 
control. We have based our estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong. We may need to obtain additional 
funds sooner or in greater amounts than we currently anticipate. Potential sources of financing include public or private 
sales of our shares or debt and other sources. We may seek to access the public or private equity markets when 
conditions are favorable due to our long-term capital requirements. We do not have any committed sources of financing 
at this time (other than the $300,000 convertible note disclosed above) and it is uncertain whether additional funding 
will be available when we need it on terms that will be acceptable to us, or at all. If we raise funds by selling additional 
shares of common stock or other securities convertible into common stock, the ownership interest of our existing 
stockholders will be diluted. If we are not able to obtain financing when needed, we may be unable to carry out our 
business plan. As a result, we may have to significantly limit our operations and our business, financial condition and 
results of operations would be materially harmed. 
  
Critical Accounting Policies 
  
In 2011, the Company estimated allowances for doubtful accounts to be 5% of the outstanding balance of accounts 
receivable based upon pharmacy industry standards as a whole. Upon further review in 2012, this estimate was deemed 
inadequate given the historical performance of the Company. The Company recalculated average days of receivables 
aging and determined that an allowance based on aging would be more appropriate for the estimation of an allowance 
for doubtful accounts. The company believes that any receivables aged over 90 days, for pharmacy sales, and 9 months, 
for DME sales or rentals, are unlikely to be collected and thus written off. This schedule will more accurately track the 
allowance for doubtful accounts and limit volatility in accounts receivable over time. 
 
In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we estimate future taxable income, considering the feasibility of 
ongoing tax planning strategies and the realizability of tax loss carry-forwards. Valuation allowances related to deferred 
tax assets can be affected by changes to tax laws, changes to statutory tax rates and future taxable income levels. Based 
on current estimates of future taxable income, the Company believes that it will not be able to realize the full value of 
deferred tax assets and has increased it allowance valuation to offset completely its deferred tax assets resulting from 
Company net operating losses (“NOL”) 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
We do not have any unconsolidated special purpose entities and, we do not have significant exposure to any off-balance 
sheet arrangements. The term “off-balance sheet arrangement” generally means any transaction, agreement or other 
contractual arrangement to which an entity unconsolidated with us is a party, under which we have: (i) any obligation 
arising under a guarantee contract, derivative instrument or variable interest; or (ii) a retained or contingent interest in 
assets transferred to such entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support for such 
assets. 
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

 

Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

     

 
December 31, 

2013  
December 31, 

2012  

          

     

Assets 

     

Current Assets         

Cash  $         58,810    $            7,357   

Accounts receivable - net                    404,636    
                   

385,233    

Federal taxes receivable                                -                        36,096   

Inventory - net                    279,171    
                   

223,747    

Prepaid expenses                      30,896                        35,847   

Total Current Assets                    773,512    
                   

688,280    

     

Property and equipment - net                    287,762    
                   

272,372    

     

Other Assets         

Debt acquisition costs - net                    251,356                        81,356   

Deposits                      47,612                         47,612    

Deferred tax asset                                -                                  -   

Total Other Assets                    298,968    
                   

128,968    

     

Total Assets  $     1,360,242     $     1,089,621    

     

          

Liabilities and Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity 

          

Current Liabilities     

Cash overdraft  $                    -     $          29,187    

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
                

1,027,854   
                   

640,873   

Deferred rent payable                      68,160                         47,216    
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Income taxes payable                                -                                  -   

Convertible notes payable- net of discount                    518,007    
                   

512,738    

Notes payable - related party                    178,500   
                   

110,500   

Notes payable - other                    333,523                         65,016    

Accrued interest payable -  related party                                -                                  -   

Unearned revenue                    120,564        

Derivative liability                                -   
                   

213,040   

Deferred tax liability                                -                                   -    

Total Current Liabilities 
                

2,246,607   
                

1,618,570   

          

Long Term Liabilities     

Note Payable                    150,000    
                   

150,000    

Total Liabilities 
                

2,396,607   
                

1,768,570   

          

Commitments and Contingencies     

Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity         
Common stock, par value $0.0001; 100,000,000 shares 

authorized     
27,706,344 and 24,821,459  issued and outstanding, 

respectively                        2,770                           2,482    

Additional paid-in capital 152,218   
                    

(75,495)  

Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) 
               

(1,191,353)   
                  

(605,936)   

Total Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity 
               

(1,036,365)  
                  

(678,949)  

          

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity  $     1,360,242    $     1,089,621   
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

 

Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries  

 Consolidated Statements of Operations  

  

      

    

  December 31, 2013  December 31, 2012  

            

Sales - net   $          9,333,141    $        10,079,816   

            

Cost of sales                   7,215,198                    7,276,469   

            

Gross profit                   2,117,943                    2,803,347   

            

Selling, general and administrative expenses      

   Bad debt expense   219,502   1,195,477   

   Other selling, general and administrative expense                   2,508,205                    3,268,084   

                       2,727,707                     4,463,561    

      

Loss from operations                     (609,763)                  (1,660,215)   

      

Other Income (Expense)           

Change in fair value of derivative liability                      524,925                         31,113   

  (Loss) on expiration of convertible debt                       (22,776)                         69,617    

Gain on debt settlement                                 -                                  -   

Loss on expired inventory                       (17,521)                                  -    

Interest income                                 5                           1,950   

Interest expense                     (449,638)                     (379,097)   

Total other income (expense) - net                        34,995                     (276,417)  

            

Net loss before income tax expense                    (574,768)                 (1,936,631)  

Provision for income tax expense           

   Current income tax (benefit) expense                      (10,649)                        73,449   

   Deferred income tax expense                                  -                      (124,014)   

       Total income tax expense                      (10,649)                      (50,565)  

            

Net loss   $           (585,417)   $        (1,987,196)  
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Basic and diluted net loss per common share   (0.02)   (0.06)   

      

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding           

  during the period - basic and diluted  26,494,317   31,694,859   
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

 

Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' (Deficit)  Equity 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012) 

          

   Common Stock      Additional      Total  

   $0.0001 Par Value    Paid-in    Retained    Stockholder's  

   Shares   Amount     Capital     Earnings     Equity  

          

Balance, December 31, 2011 (as restated)   
       

36,348,830  
            

3,635    
          

(267,831)   
            

1,381,261    
           

1,117,065  

          

Issuance of common stock for debt issue costs   
            

196,078  
                 

20    
               

6,973                              -    
                  

6,993  

          
Issuance of common stock for services 
rendered   

              
60,000                     6    

             
25,694                              -    

                
25,700  

          
Issuance of common stock for services 
rendered - related party   

            
424,983  

                 
42    

             
57,458                              -    

                
57,500  

          

Retirement of cancelled shares   
      

(12,208,432) 
           

(1,221)   
               

1,221                              -                             -  

          

Gain on debt forgiveness - related party                           -  
                    

-    100,990                              -    100,990  

          
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 
2012                           -  

                    
-                           -    

          
(1,987,196)   

         
(1,987,196) 

          

Balance, December 31, 2012    
       

24,821,459   $       2,482     $     (75,495)    $      (605,935)    $     (678,948) 

          

Issuance of common stock for debt issue costs   
         

2,500,000  
               

250    
           

169,750                              -    
              

170,000  

          
Issuance of common stock for services 
rendered   

            
234,885  

                 
23    

             
52,977                              -    

                
53,000  

          
Issuance of common stock for services 
rendered - related party   

            
150,000  

                 
15    

               
4,985                              -    

                  
5,000  

          
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 
2013                           -  

                    
-                           -    

             
(585,417)   

            
(585,417) 

          

Balance, December 31, 2013   
       

27,706,344   $       2,770     $      152,217     $   (1,191,352)    $  (1,036,365) 
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

 

Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

     

  

 
December 31, 

2013  
December 31, 

2012 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:     

     

Net loss  $            (585,417)    $        (1,987,196) 

     

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash       

 provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation 
                    

(51,495)   
                      

45,779  

 Deferred taxes                                -   
                    

124,014  

Change in Allowance of Doubtful Accounts 
                   

219,502    
                 

1,246,338  

Stock-based compensation  
                     

53,000   
                      

25,700  

Stock-based compensation - related parties 
                       

5,000    
                      

57,500  

Amortization of debt issue and debt discount 
                  

(170,000)  
                    

307,286  

Change in fair value of derivative liability 
                  

(213,040)   
                    

(31,114) 

Change in deferred/unearned revenue                                -                                  -  

Gain on debt forgiveness  
                   

120,564    
                    

(69,617) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

(Increase) decrease in:       

Accounts receivable 
                  

(238,906)  
                  

(624,736) 

Federal taxes receivable 
                     

36,096    
                    

(36,096) 

Inventory 
                    

(55,423)  
                      

24,931  

Prepaids 
                       

4,952    
                    

(14,106) 

Deposits                                -   
                      

(2,871) 

Increase (decrease) in:       



 
 

 

42 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
                   

413,119   
                    

549,959  

Deferred rent 
                     

20,944    
                      

29,681  

Income tax payable                                -   
                    

(43,344) 

Accrued interest payable - related party                                -    
                        

6,139  

Net Cash  (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities 
                  

(441,104)  
                  

(391,753) 

        

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:     

Purchase of property and equipment 
                     

36,106    
                    

(41,356) 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 
                     

36,106   
                    

(41,356) 

        

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:     

Cash overdraft 
                    

(29,187)   
                    

(42,193) 

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 
                   

410,680   
                    

500,000  

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable - related party 
                     

68,000    
                    

110,500  

Repayment of notes payable 
                  

(163,042)  
                  

(114,215) 

Shares issued in connection with debt acquisition costs 
                   

170,000    
                  

(102,500) 

Net Cash  Provided by Financing Activities 
                   

456,451   
                    

351,592  

        

Net decrease in cash  
                     

51,453   
                    

(81,517) 

        

Cash at beginning of period 
                       

7,357   
                      

88,874  

        

Cash at end of period  $                58,810    $                   7,357  

        

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:     

Cash paid for interest  $                           -     $                28,975  

Cash paid for taxes  $                           -    $              111,289  

        

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash financing activities:     

Conversion of accounts payable to notes payable  $                26,137     $              151,021  
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Debt discount recorded on convertible debt accounted for as a derivative 
liability  -   $              244,153  

Issuance of common stock as debt acquisition costs  -    $                   6,993  

Gain on debt forgiveness - related party  -   $              100,990  
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PROGRESSIVE CARE INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 
  
Note 1 Organization & Nature of Operations 
  
Progressive Care, Inc. (the “Company”, formerly Progressive Training, Inc.) was incorporated under the laws of the state 
of Delaware on October 31, 2006.  PharmCo, LLC (“PharmCo”), headquartered in North Miami Beach, Florida, was formed 
on November 29, 2005 as a Florida Limited Liability Company. On October 21, 2010, the Company acquired PharmCo. 
  
The Company is a provider of prescription pharmaceuticals specializing in the sale of anti-retroviral medications and 
related patient care management, the sale and rental of durable medical equipment ("DME") and the supply of all 
prescription medications and DME to nursing homes and assisted living facilities. Prior to the acquisition, the Company 
operated a training video business. 
    
Note 2 Basis of Presentation and Reclassification 
 
On January 27, 2011, the Company changed its fiscal year end to December 31.  On December 31, 2010 the Company sold 
off its video training operations (“Advanced”). Certain December 31, 2010 amounts have been reclassified to conform to 
the new fiscal year’s presentation, which included presentation of discontinued operations.  There were no other changes 
affecting financial position, operations or cash flows. 
 
Note 3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  
Principles of Consolidation 
  
All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Use of Estimates 
  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions impact both assets and liabilities, including but not limited to: net 
realizable value of accounts receivable, estimated useful lives and potential impairment of property and equipment, the 
value of goodwill and intangible assets and related potential impairment, estimated fair value of warrants using the Black-
Scholes option pricing method and estimates of tax liabilities. 
 
Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the 
estimate of the effect of a condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial statements, 
which management considered in formulating its estimate, could change in the near term due to one or more future 
confirming events. Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from estimates. 
 
Cash 
  
The Company minimizes credit risk associated with cash by periodically evaluating the credit quality of its primary financial 
institution. The balance at times may exceed federally insured limits; however, at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 
2012, respectively, the balances did not exceed the federally insured limit. 
  
Risks and Uncertainties 
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The Company's operations are subject to intense competition, risk and uncertainties including financial, operational, 
regulatory and other risks including the potential risk of business failure. 
  
Billing Concentrations 
  
The Company’s primary receivables are from prescription medication and DME equipment billed to various insurance 
providers.  Ultimately, the insured is responsible for payment should the insurance company not reimburse the Company. 
The Company generated reimbursements from four significant insurance providers for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012 
  

Payors    
Year Ended 

December 31, 2013    
Year Ended 

December 31, 2012    

A    20%    19%    
B    14%    16%    
C    13%    13%    
D   11%   11%   

 
   

   
  
Inventory 
  
Inventory is valued on a lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market basis. Inventory primarily consists of prescription 
medications, retail items and DME equipment available to be sold or rented. 
 
Property and Equipment 
  
Company used property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance 
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
 
The Company provides DME on rent-to-own terms. Pursuant to Medicare guidelines (which are followed by private 
insurance carriers as well) DME equipment is “rented” to the insured for 13 months, after which title to the equipment 
transfers to the insured. 
  
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives as follows: 
  
Description   Estimated Useful Life 

Leasehold improvements and fixtures   Lesser of estimated useful life or life of lease 
Furniture and equipment   5 years 
Computer equipment and software   3 years 
Vehicles   3-5 years 
DME equipment rented   13 months 
 
Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. There were no impairment charges for the years ended December 
31, 2013 and 2012. 
  
Business Combinations 
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The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting and accordingly, the 
assets and liabilities of the acquired business are recorded at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of 
the purchase price over the estimated fair values is recorded as goodwill. Any changes in the estimated fair values of the 
net assets recorded for acquisitions prior to the finalization of more detailed analysis, but not to exceed one year from 
the date of acquisition, will change the amount of the purchase prices allocable to goodwill. All acquisition costs are 
expensed as incurred. 
  
Intangible Assets 
  
Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives. Such intangible assets are 
reviewed for impairment if indicators of potential impairment exist. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for 
impairment on an annual basis, or sooner if an indicator of impairment occurs. 
 
No impairment charges of intangible assets were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
  
Goodwill 
  
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and in interim periods if certain events occur indicating that the carrying value 
of goodwill may be impaired. 
 
No impairment charges of goodwill were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
 
Debt Acquisition Costs 
  
The Company paid debt acquisition costs in connection with raising funds through the issuance of convertible 
debt.  These costs are amortized over the life of the debt to interest expense. Total amortization of debt acquisition 
costs for 2013 and 2012 was $74,435 and $143,403 respectively. If a conversion of the underlying debt occurs, the 
proportionate share of the unamortized amounts is immediately expensed. 
  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
  
The accounting guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  When determining the fair 
value measurements for assets and liabilities required to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the principal 
or most advantageous market in which it would transact business and considers assumptions that marketplace 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, such as inherent risk, transfer restrictions, and risk of 
nonperformance. 
 
The guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy for measurements of fair value as follows: 
  
  • Level 1 – quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
      
  • Level 2 -inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices in active 

markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are 
not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for 
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

      
  • Level 3 – unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the 
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fair value of the assets or liabilities. 
 
The Company’s financial instruments consisted of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities, and notes payable. The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments generally approximate 
their fair values at December 31, 2013 and 2012, due to the short term nature of these instruments. 
  
The following are the major categories of liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2013 
and December 31, 2012, significant other observable inputs (Level 2): 
  

      

December 
31, 

2013       
December 31, 

2012    

Conversion feature related to convertible debt (Level 2)    $ 0,000       $ 213,040    
 
The Level 2 valuation relates to a conversion feature related to convertible debt measured using management's estimates 
of fair value as well as other significant inputs that are unobservable. 
  
The Company has determined the estimated fair value amounts presented in these financial statements using available 
market information and appropriate methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market 
data to develop the estimates of fair value. The estimates presented in the financial statements are not necessarily 
indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions 
and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. 
 
Derivative Liabilities 
  
Fair value accounting requires bifurcation of embedded derivative instruments such as conversion features in 
convertible debt or equity instruments, and measurement of their fair value. In determining the appropriate fair value, 
the Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In assessing the convertible debt instruments, management 
determines if the convertible debt host instrument is conventional convertible debt and further if there is a beneficial 
conversion feature requiring measurement. If the instrument is not considered conventional convertible debt, the 
Company will continue its evaluation process of these instruments as derivative financial instruments. 
  
Once derivative liabilities are determined, they are adjusted to reflect fair value at the end of each reporting period. Any 
increase or decrease in the fair value is recorded in results of operations as an adjustment to fair value of derivatives. In 
addition, the fair value of freestanding derivative instruments such as warrants, are also valued using the Black-Scholes 
option-pricing model. Once a derivative liability ceases to exist any remaining fair value will be reclassified to Gain (Loss) 
on Expiration of Convertible component of the debt. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
  
The Company records revenue when all of the following have occurred: (1) pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists, 
(2) asset is transferred to the customer without further obligation, (3) the sales price to the customer is fixed or 
determinable, and (4) collectability is reasonably assured. 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had two identifiable continuing revenue streams: 
 
(i)           Pharmacy 
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The Company recognizes its pharmacy revenue when a customer picks up or is delivered their prescription or purchases 
merchandise at the store.  Billings for most prescription orders are with third-party payers, including Medicare, Medicaid 
and insurance carriers. Customer returns are nominal.  
 
Total pharmacy revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $8,494,000 (91%) and 
$8,853,000 (88%), respectively. 
 
(ii)         Durable Medical Equipment 
 
The Company recognizes DME revenue from the date the equipment is picked up at its store or delivered to the 
customer. Revenue from DME rentals is recorded over a 13 month period. Customer returns are nominal.  
 
Total DME revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $829,000 (9%) and 
$1,227,000 (12%), respectively. 
  
Cost of Sales 
  
Cost of pharmacy sales is derived based upon vendor purchases relating to prescriptions sold and point-of-sale scanning 
information for non-prescription sales, and is adjusted based on periodic inventories. All other costs related to sales are 
expensed as incurred. 
 
Cost of DME sales is derived based upon vendor purchases relating to equipment sold and is adjusted based on periodic 
inventories. All other costs related to sales are expensed as incurred. 
  
Vendor Concentrations 
  
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had significant vendor concentrations with two 
vendors. The purchases from these significant vendors are as follows:  
  

Vendor 
   Year Ended 

December 31, 2013 
   Year Ended 

December 31, 2012 
   

A    65%    78%    
B    20%    13%    

  
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 
  
Selling expenses primarily consist of store salaries, contract labor, occupancy costs, and expenses directly related to the 
store.  Other general and administrative costs include advertising, insurance and depreciation and amortization. 
  
Advertising 
  
Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising for the Company are charged to operations as incurred and 
are as follows 
  

   
Year Ended 

December 31, 2013    
Year Ended 

December 31, 2012    

   $ 38,375    $ 23,670    
 
Stock-Based Payment Arrangements 
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Generally, all forms of stock-based payments, including warrants, are measured at their fair value on the awards’ grant 
date typically using a Black-Scholes pricing model, based on the estimated number of awards that are ultimately 
expected to vest. Stock-based compensation awards issued to non-employees for services rendered are recorded at 
either the fair value of the services rendered or the fair value of the stock-based payment, whichever is more readily 
determinable. The expense resulting from stock-based payments are recorded in selling, general and administrative 
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. 
 
Income Taxes 
  
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing 
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those 
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a 
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The Company recognizes the 
effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax 
positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized; changes in recognition or 
measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs. 
 
The Company does not believe it has any uncertain tax positions in 2013 and 2012. 
 
Earnings (Loss) per Share 
  
Basic earnings/loss per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net loss available to common stockholders by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding the effects of any potentially dilutive 
securities. Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential of shares of common stock outstanding during the period 
including stock warrants, using the treasury stock method (by using the average stock price for the period to determine 
the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock warrants), and convertible debt, using the if-
converted method. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential of shares of common stock if their effect is anti-dilutive. 
 
The Company had the following potential common stock equivalents outstanding at December 31, 2013: 
 
      Shares    

           
Convertible debt – face amount of $150,000; fixed conversion price ; $0.40          375,000    
Convertible debt – face amount of $300,000; fixed conversion price;  $0.40       750,000    
Common stock warrants - 15,000; exercise price of $0.40            15,000    

Total common stock equivalents       1,140,000    

  
   
 
The Company reflected a net loss for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012; therefore, the effect of considering 
any common stock equivalents, if outstanding, would be anti-dilutive; consequently, a separate computation of diluted 
earnings (loss) per share is not presented. 
  
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
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The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact its 
consolidated financial statements and does not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that 
have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations. 
 
Note 3. Going Concern 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company had a net loss of approximately $0.6 million and negative cash 
flow from operations of approximately $440,000. The Company does not believe that it will have sufficient capital to 
operate over the next 12 months and additional funding will be necessary to continue with operations and complete 
planned expansion initiatives. The Company will need to raise capital in order to fund its operations and meet its debt 
service obligations. To address its financing requirements, the Company will seek funding through offering equity or 
convertible debt securities to individual and institutional investors. The outcome of these matters cannot be predicted at 
this time. 
  
Historically, the Company has had operating losses, negative cash flows, and working capital deficiencies. Whether, and 
when, the Company can attain profitability and positive cash flows from operations is uncertain. Also, the Company is 
uncertain as to whether it can obtain financing to execute growth objectives. 
 
Uncertainties also exist as to the final outcome of legal proceedings which may entail a foreclosure on assets pledged by 
the Company, and settlement of these matters on beneficial terms for the Company is not assured. See Note 10. 
 
These uncertainties cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s 
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties. See Note 
10. 
  
Note 4. Accounts Receivable 
  
Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 
 

      
December 
31, 2013       

December 
31, 2012    

                  
Gross accounts receivable    $ 498,042       $ 330,037    
Allowance       -118,825          -  
Unbilled receivables       25,419          55,205    

Accounts receivable – net    $ 404,636       $ 385,233    

 
The Company recorded a reduction to accounts receivable for estimated differences between the expected and actual 
payment of accounts receivable. These reductions were made based upon reasonable and reliable estimates that were 
determined by historical experience, contractual terms, and current conditions. Each quarter, the Company reevaluates 
its estimates to assess the adequacy of its allowance and adjusts the amounts as necessary. 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company wrote off $219,502and $1,195,477 respectively, of its 
accounts receivable to the allowance for doubtful accounts. 
  
Note 5 Property and Equipment 

 
Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 
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December 
31, 2013       

December 
31, 2012    

              
Leasehold improvements and fixtures    $ 226,457       $ 218,597    
Furniture and equipment       33,374          33.374    
Computer equipment and software       56,406          56,406    
Vehicles       90,046          90,046    
DME       155,445          199,410    

     Total       561,729          597,833    
Less: accumulated depreciation       273,966          325,461    

Property and equipment – net    $ 287,762       $ 272,372    

  
Depreciation and amortization expense for 2013 and 2012 was $37618 and $45,779, respectively. 
  
Note 6.  Notes Payable 
 
Notes payable consists of the following: 
  

      
December 
31, 2013       

December 
31, 2012    

                   
A. Convertible note payable – collateralized    $ 518,007       $ 593,007    
     Less: Unamortized debt discount       -          80,270    

     Convertible note payable – net       518,007          512,738    
                           
B. Convertible note payable – uncollateralized       150,000          150,000    
                           
C. Note payable – related party       178,500          110,500    

                           
D. Note payable – collateralized       333,523          61,807    

Total debt    $ 1,180,030       $ 835,045    

                           
Current portion – notes payable    $ 850,030       $ 574,545    

Current portion note payable – related party    $ 178,500       $ 110,500    

Long term portion – convertible note payable    $ 150,000       $ 150,000    

  
The corresponding notes payable above are more fully discussed below: 
 
(A)  Convertible Note Payable – collateralized 
  
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company issued a secured convertible note for $500,000. The note bears 
interest of 12% per annum (1% per month), of which 6% is paid monthly and 6% is accrued and due in a balloon 
payment at maturity. At December 31, 2012, unpaid accrued interest on this note was $27,500. The note has a default 
interest rate of 18%, a maturity date of April 30, 2013 and is secured by all of the assets of the Company and its 
subsidiary.  The debt holder is entitled, at their option, to convert all or part of the principal and unpaid accrued interest 
into shares of the Company’s common stock. The note is convertible at 95% of the volume weighted average price of the 
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Company’s common stock for the 5 days preceding conversion. The embedded conversion feature within this note 
classifies it as a derivative liability. See Note 7. 
  
The Company incurred debt issue costs of $202,500 in connection with the note, for which common stock valued at 
$7,000 was issued, a note payable was issued of approximately $93,000, and the remaining $102,500 was paid in cash. 
 
On June 4, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment agreement with the debt holder whereby all outstanding 
accrued interest, principal, and facility fees were rolled into a single note. The face value of the note was $623,007.06 
and matured on November 1, 2013 with a payment schedule of $35,000 for the first 3 months, $75,000 for 2 months 
and a balloon for the remainder due on or before November 1, 2013. As of November 18, 2013, the debt holder issued a 
notice of default on this note. See notes 11 and 12. 
  
(B)  Convertible Note Payable – uncollateralized 
  
On November 28, 2011, the Company entered into a $150,000 3-year 8% convertible note with an investor. Under the 
terms of the note, the investor has the option to convert their note into shares of the Company’s common stock at an 
exercise price of $0.40 per share. In connection with this note, the Company paid debt issue costs of $18,000 and issued 
15,000, 3-year warrants exercisable at $0.40 per share, having a fair market value of $4,895, as calculated using the 
Black Scholes valuation method. The warrants vested on the date of issuance and expire November 27, 2014. See 
Note 8. 
 
(C)  Convertible Note Payable – uncollateralized 
 
On April 23, 2013, the Company entered into a $300,000 1-year 10% convertible note with an investor. Under the terms 
of the Note, the investor has the option to convert the Note into shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise 
price of $0.40/share. In connection with this note, the Company incurred debt issue costs of 1,000,000 shares of stock 
valued at the closing price on the OTCBB on April 13, 2013, which was $0.11. The securities are restricted securities, and 
may not be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the “Act”), or an exemption thereunder. The securities were offered and sold in reliance on the exemption from 
registration under Section 4(2) of the Act. The offering was not conducted in connection with a public offering, and no 
public solicitation or advertisement was made or relied upon by the individual in connection with the offering. 
 
(D)  Notes Payable – Related Party 
 
The Company issued $178,500 in aggregated unsecured promissory notes to a control shareholder, Mr. Armen 
Karapetyan, between August 24, 2012 and December 31, 2013. The notes are non-interest bearing and were payable 
upon demand. 
  
(E)  Note Payable Other – collateralized 
  
The company converted invoices with three different vendors to notes payable on various dates between March 23, 2012 
and July 25, 2012. The notes bore interest at rates ranging from 0% to 5%, were due within one year and collateralized by 
the Company’s inventory. One note was extended until August 17, 2014. The balance outstanding on these notes was 
$8,522.62 and $40,016 as December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
  
Interest expense on the notes was $90,259 and $53,269 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Amortization of the debt discount was $389,446 and $168,887 in 2013 and 2012 respectively, and was included in interest 
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 
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Note 7. Derivative Liabilities 
 
In 2012, the Company identified a conversion feature embedded within one of its convertible debt instruments and 
determined that it should be accounted for at fair value as a derivative liability. The convertible feature expired in 
November 2013 and was not renewed. The derivative liability at December 31, 2013 was $-0-. 
 
The fair value of the conversion feature is summarized as follow: 
  
Derivative liability - December 31, 2012    $ -    
Fair value at the commitment date for debt instruments       213.040    
Fair value mark to market adjustment for debt instruments       (213,040 )   

Derivative liability – December 31,2013    $ 0    

 
Note 8.  Stock Warrants 
  
A summary of warrant activity for the Company for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows: 
  

      
Number of  
Warrants       

Weighted  
Average 
Exercise  

Price    

Balance at December 31, 2011    $ -       $ -    
Granted       15,000          0.40    
Exercised       -          -    
Forfeited       -          -    
Balance at December 31, 2012    $ 15,000       $ 0.40    
Granted       -          -    
Exercised       -          -    
Forfeited       -          -    

Balance at December 31, 2013    $ 15,000       $ 0.40    

  
A summary of all outstanding and exercisable warrants as of December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
  

Exercise  Price   
Warrants  

Outstanding   
Warrants  

Exercisable   

Weighted Average  
Remaining  

Contractual Life    

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 

Value    

$ 0.40    15,000   15,000   0.91 years    $ 1,200    
  
The Black-Scholes assumptions used in 2013 were as follows: 
 

     

Year Ended 
December 
31, 2013   

Exercise price   $ 0.40   
Expected dividends     0 % 
Expected volatility     214 % 
Risk free interest rate     0.39  % 
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Expected life of option   0.91 Years   
Expected forfeitures     0 % 
 
Note 9.  Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity 
  
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company issued 2,884,885 shares of its common stock, with share prices 
ranging from $0.03 to $0.23, to officers, employees and consultants for services rendered and the acquisition of debt. 
The shares have a fair value of $228,000. The fair value of stock issued for these services is based upon the quoted 
closing trading price, or the value of the services provided, whichever is more readily determinable 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company issued 681,061 shares of its common stock, with share prices 
ranging from $0.04 to $0.55, to consultants for services rendered and the acquisition of debt; the shares have a fair 
value of $90,193. The fair value of stock issued for these services is based upon the quoted closing trading price, or the 
value of the services provided, whichever is more readily determinable.  
 
In 2012, a note holder related through common ownership forgave a note payable in the amount of $100,990.  The 
liability was reclassified as additional paid-in capital in stockholders’ (deficit) equity during 2012. 

  
Note 10.  Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Legal Matters 
  
On July 26, 2013, the Company was named as a respondent to a complaint issued by AmerisourceBergen Drug 
Corporation. The complaint was filed in Pennsylvania and alleges among other things a failure by PharmCo, LLC to pay 
for prescription drugs furnished to PharmCo, LLC pursuant to a credit agreement dated April 18, 2011. On October 13, 
2013 the Company filed a statement of answer responding to the allegations. The Company believes among other things 
that AmerisourceBergen instituted overly restrictive purchasing policies that impacted the Company’s ability to service 
its patients and such policy is not present in the cited credit agreement. On August 21, 2014, the Company entered into 
a settlement agreement pending the outcome of a planned 3A-10 transaction. 
 
The Company has accrued the full value of invoices due to AmerisourceBergen and the claim was settled for that 
amount. The total value of outstanding AmerisourceBergen invoices is approximately $227,000 and is included on the 
consolidated balance sheets under accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
 
On November 18, 2013, TCA Global Credit Master Fund, L.P. (“TCA”) filed a complaint against the Company and 
PharmCo in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida. The complaint alleges, among other 
things, that the Company is in default of that certain First Amendment to Certain Agreements effective as of June 4, 
2013 by and between the Company and TCA and that certain Replacement, Amended and Restated Promissory Note 
issued by the Company in favor of TCA. In addition, the Complaint alleges that PharmCo is in breach of that certain 
Acknowledgement and Affirmation of Guaranty Agreement by and between PharmCo and TCA. TCA seeks to recover 
$687,176 plus interest, costs, attorneys and to foreclose on the assets pledged by the Company and PharmCo in 
connection with the transaction. On May 23, 2014, the Company entered into a settlement agreement pending the 
outcome of a planned 3A-10 transaction, which would reduce the outstanding debt to $575,000. See Notes 6, 7, and 12. 
  
As of December 31, 2012, the Company has recorded $593,007 in principal and $20,000 in accrued interest in connection 
with this note. The difference between what is recorded at December 31, 2012 and the amount of the claim made by TCA 
includes accrued interest for 2013, fees, penalties, and legal costs that are under dispute. As these differences are in 
relation to the notice of default in 2013, they will be accrued in 2013. 
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On April 8, 2014, The United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida dismissed the cased without prejudice. 
The Company participating in settlement negotiations with TCA pending the outcome of a proposed 3A-10 Transaction.  
  
The Company believes it has recorded the full value of debt due to TCA on the consolidated balance sheets under 
convertible notes payable. It has not been deemed necessary to accrue any additional contingencies in relation to this 
claim at this time. 
 
On August 22, 2014 the Company entered into an agreement with Tarpon Bay Partners LLC, for the purchase of 
$1,826,005.16 in past due debt which includes debts payable to AmerisourceBergen, TCA, individual note holders, 
related parties and assorted past due amounts for accounts payable from the company for the purposes of executing a 
3A-10 Transaction that would alleviate the Company’s debt burden. Certain vendors agreed to the purchase of their 
debt by Tarpon Bay, including TCA. The settlement of such debt is pending a proposed 3A-10 Transaction, which 
received judicial approval on September 3, 2014 pursuant to a complaint filed with the Circuit Court of the Second 
Judicial Circuit in Leon County, Florida on June 24, 2014. There is no guarantee at this time that the 3A-10 transaction 
will be successful in alleviating the Company’s debt.  
  
Management believes that obligations recorded on its consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2013 and December 
31, 2012 were adequate based on its assessment of the ongoing complaints. 
  
Lease Commitments 
 
Rent expense was $293,822 and $265,300 respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 
 
Deferred rent payable at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $68,160 and $$47,216, respectively. Deferred 
rent payable is the sum of the difference between the monthly rent payment and the straight-line monthly rent expense 
of an operating lease that contains escalated payments in future periods. 

 
Our corporate office is located at 1111 Park Center. Blvd, Suite 202, Miami Gardens, FL  33169. The corporate office 
lease is for 2 suites amounting to approximately 3,000 square feet. The monthly rent is approximately $4,000. The lease 
expires September 30, 2014. The Company has not renewed the lease and has moved corporate operations to the 
PharmCo, LLC location at 901 N Miami Beach Blvd, Ste 1-2, North Miami Beach, FL 33162.   
 
We currently rent approximately 5,100 square feet of retail and pharmacy space in North Miami, FL for a monthly rent 
of approximately $13,100.  The lease expires in December 2020. 
 
We also lease another 3,100 square feet of retail and pharmacy space in Opa-locka, FL for approximately $5,400 per 
month; this lease expires in November 2016. This property has yet to open due to permitting, licensure and approval 
processing delays by local, state, and federal government agencies, namely the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA), which 
has experienced a backlog in license requests. All available estimates suggest that delays at the DEA range from 6 to 12 
months. 
 
At December 31, 2013, rental commitments for currently occupied space for the fiscal years of 2014 through 2020 are as 
follows: 
  

Year    Amount    

2014    $ 252,,382    
2015       221,621    
2016       229.949    
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2017       181,170    
2018       184,826    
Thereafter       397,502    

      $ 1,467,360    

 
 Note 11.  Subsequent Events 
 
On April 8, 2014, The United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida dismissed the cased with TCA 
Global Credit Master Fund without prejudice. On May 23, 2014, the Company entered into a settlement agreement 
pending the outcome of a planned 3A-10 transaction, which would reduce the outstanding debt to $575,000. 
 
On April 26, 2014 the company terminated the lease without penalty for the previously proposed North Shore location. 
The lease was terminated due to insurmountable zoning and permitting restrictions placed on the site. The location in 
North Shore, FL was approximately 1,600 square feet.  
 
On June 5, 2014, PharmCo 780, Inc. withdrew its application for a DEA license. PharmCo 780 is considering filing a new 
application for licensure on 2015 for reconsideration. The Opa-locka, FL location is currently being used to provide free 
HIV/STD screenings to the general public.  
 
On July 1, 2014, the board of directors agreed to issue 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to Spark 
Financial Consulting, Inc. in satisfaction of $60,000 in past due debt. 
 
On July 3, 2014 the company’s shareholders and board of directors authorized the creation of 51 shares of Series A 
Super-voting Preferred Stock at par value of $0.001 per share. The series is a non-dividend producing instrument which 
will rank superior to the Company’s common stock.  
 
Each one (1) share of the Series A Preferred Stock shall have voting rights equal to (x) 0.019607 multiplied by the total 
issued and outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote (the 
“Numerator”), divided by (y) 0.49, minus (z) the Numerator. For the avoidance of doubt, if the total issued and 
outstanding Common Stock eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote is 5,000,000, the voting rights of one share 
of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be equal to 102,036 (0.019607 x 5,000,000) / 0.49) – (0.019607 x 5,000,000) = 
102,036).  
 
With respect to all matters upon which stockholders are entitled to vote or to which stockholders are entitled to give 
consent, the holders of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall vote together with the holders of 
Common Stock without regard to class, except as to those matters on which separate class voting is required by 
applicable law or the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws. 
 
On July 11, 2014, the board of directors approved the issuance of 51 shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock to 
Armen Karapetyan, which is equal to 50.99% of the total voting power of all issued and outstanding voting capital of the 
company.  
 
On August 21, 2014, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with AmerisourceBergen pending the outcome 
of a planned 3A-10 transaction. 
 
On August 22, 2014 the Company entered into an agreement with Tarpon Bay Partners LLC, for the purchase of 
$1,826,005.16 in past due debt which includes debts payable to AmerisourceBergen, TCA, individual note holders, 
related parties and assorted past due amounts for accounts payable from the company for the purposes of executing a 
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3A-10 Transaction that would alleviate the Company’s debt burden. Certain vendors agreed to the purchase of their 
debt by Tarpon Bay, including TCA. The settlement of such debt is pending a proposed 3A-10 Transaction, which 
received judicial approval on September 3, 2014 pursuant to a complaint filed with the Circuit Court of the Second 
Judicial Circuit in Leon County, Florida on June 24, 2014. There is no guarantee at this time that the 3A-10 transaction 
will be successful in alleviating the Company’s debt.  
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
  
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure and Control Procedures 
The Company has adopted and maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the “Exchange Act”), such as this Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements Report, is collected, 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  The Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that such 
information is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure.  As required under Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act, the Company’s management, including the Interim Chief 
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), has conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of 
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report.  Based upon that evaluation, the 
Company has concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to ensure that 
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that the Company files or submits under the 
Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and 
forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the 
Company’s CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 
  
(b) Management’s Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act.  The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is 
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the 
preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.  Management conducted an assessment of the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework and criteria established by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework.  Based on the 
assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting was not effective based on those criteria. 
 
In April of 2013, management determined the Company’s internal controls regarding accounts receivable management 
were not adequate. The Company lacked the appropriate personnel and oversight over tracking of accounts receivables 
and collections of amounts owed to the Company by various healthcare payors. In addition, the Company’s system for 
calculating its allowance for doubtful accounts was also not effective. As a result, the Company determined that a 
significant amount of its accounts receivable (approximately $1.2 million) that was previously thought to be collectable 
had aged beyond collectability and thus required to be written off as bad debt expense. 
 
To correct this deficiency, the Company hired additional accounting staff and engaged third parties to assist in tracking 
and collecting accounts receivables. The Company now tracks each insurance claim billed individually, applies payments 
towards those billings pursuant to explanation of benefits details received from healthcare payors and pursues unpaid 
claims within a timely manner. A time period of 90 days aging has been set for determining un-collectability on 
pharmacy billing and a period of 9 months has been set for DME billing. The Company believes that these improvements 
will lead to better accounts receivable management and therefore lead to improvement in internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
The Company’s management, including its Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect 
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and its internal control processes will prevent all error and all 
fraud.  A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.  Further, the design of a control system must reflect the 
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs.  Because 
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of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all 
control issues and instances of error or fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.  These inherent 
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that the breakdowns can occur 
because of simple error or mistake.  Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, 
by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control.  The design of any system of controls 
also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that 
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.  Over time, controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and may not be detected.  However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting 
process.  Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk. 
  
(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
Other than the conditions noted above, there has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the periods ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding 
internal control over financial reporting.  Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s 
registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permanently exempt 
smaller reporting companies.  
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
  

The following table and biographical summaries set forth information, including principal occupation and business 
experience, about our directors and executive officers at January 31, 2014: 

  
Name   Age   Position 

Alan Jay Weisberg (1)   68   
Chairman, Director, Chief Financial Officer, Interim Chief 
Executive Officer 

Shital Parikh Mars (2)   28   Director, Chief Operating Officer 
Vernon Watson (3)   51   Chief Executive Officer 
Avraham Friedman (4)   39   Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President 
Andy Subachan (5)   39   Director, Chief Operating Officer 

 
   (1) Mr. Weisberg was appointed Chief Finical Officer on December 1, 2010.  Effective on January 22, 2013, Mr. 

Weisberg was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. 
  
   (2) On August 27, 2012, Ms. Parikh Mars was appointed as Chief Operating Officer and as a member of the board of 

directors. 
 
   (3) Mr. Watson was appointed Chief Executive Officer on August 27, 2012.  Effective as of January 17, 2013, Mr. 

Watson resigned as Chief Executive Officer. 
 
   (4) Mr. Friedman was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on December 1, 2010.  Effective as of August 27, 2012, 

Mr. Friedman resigned as Chief Executive Officer and was appointed to serve as the Chief Compliance 
Officer.  Effective January 21, 2013, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chairman.  Effective February 5, 2013, Mr. 
Friedman resigned as Chief Compliance Officer. 

 
   (5) Mr. Subachan was appointed as Chief Operating Officer on December 1, 2010.  Effective as of June 11, 2012, Mr. 

Subachan resigned as a director and, on the same date, the Company terminated Mr. Subachan’s employment 
as Chief Operating Officer. 

 
Alan Jay Weisberg: Chief Financial Officer and Director of Progressive Care since October 2010. Mr. Weisberg has more 
than 30 years of accounting experience and has been the CFO of several publicly traded companies. Mr. Weisberg is a 
partner in Weisberg, Brause & Company, a Boca Raton, FL accounting firm. Mr. Weisberg has served as an adjunct 
professor of introductory finance at Florida International University and as an instructor of introductory accounting at 
the American Institute of Banking. He has also lectured to community groups on tax and estate planning. Mr. Weisberg 
is a graduate of Penn State University where he earned his BS in Accounting and a graduate of Florida International 
University where he earned his Masters of Business Administration. Mr. Weisberg is also a registered CPA in the state of 
Florida. Mr. Weisberg was selected to serve as a director on our Board due to his expertise in public company 
accounting. 
 
Shital Parikh Mars: Ms. Parikh Mars has been a vital consultant to the Company for the past three years. As President 
and CEO of Spark Financial Consulting, Ms. Parikh Mars provided business development consulting services in which she 
advised the Company on human resources, financial reporting and transactions, operations, compliance, SEC filings, and 
investor relations, among other things. Prior to her consulting position, Ms. Parikh Mars was also the Chief Operating 
Officer of Basis Financial, a boutique investment banking firm engaged by the Company. Her experience in the financial 
services industry centers on operational management, preparation and submission of financial statements, mergers & 
acquisitions, securities offerings, SEC reporting, due diligence, compliance, and regulatory audits.  Ms. Parikh Mars has a 
B.S in Business Administration and Accounting and is a member of the international business honor society, Delta Mu 
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Delta. Ms. Parikh Mars currently maintains 8 securities license registrations including the Series 7, Series 66, and Series 
24. Her managerial expertise has been invaluable as a consultant and is expected to be a tremendous asset as Chief 
Operating Officer of the Company. 
 
Family Relationships 
 
There are no family relationships among our directors and executive officers. 
 
Directors’ Term of Office 

  
Directors will hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and the election and qualification of their 
successors. Officers are elected annually by our board of directors and serve at the discretion of the board of directors. 
 
Committees of the Board of Directors 
 
We have not established any committees, including an audit committee, a compensation committee or a nominating 
committee.  At the present time, we believe that our Board is capable of analyzing and evaluating our financial 
statements and understanding internal controls and procedures for financial reporting. 
 
Legal Proceedings 
 
To the best of our knowledge, during the past ten years, none of the following occurred with respect to our present or 
former director, executive officer, or employee: (1) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which 
such person was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to 
that time; (2) any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic 
violations and other minor offenses); (3) being subject to any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, 
suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending 
or otherwise limiting his or her involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities; and (4) being found 
by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or the Commodities Futures Trading Commission to have 
violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or 
vacated. 
  
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance 
 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s executive officers, directors and persons 
who beneficially own more than 10 percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file with the SEC 
initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of the Company’s common stock.  Such officers, 
directors and persons are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms that 
they file with the SEC. 
 
Based solely on a review of the copies of such forms that were received by the Company, or written representations 
from certain reporting persons that no Form 5s were required for those persons, the Company is not aware of any 
failures to file reports or report transactions in a timely manner during the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 
2012, except that a form 3 has not yet been filed for each of Messrs. Friedman, Subachan and Karapetyan with respect 
to shares received in connection their employment and consulting agreements. For the period ended December 31, 
2013 all reports were filed in a timely manner. 
 
Code of Ethics 
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We do not currently have a code of ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Accounting Officer or Controller, or persons performing similar functions. Because we have only limited business 
operations and four officers and directors, we believe a code of ethics would have limited utility. We intend to adopt 
such a code of ethics as our business operations expand and we have more directors, officers and employees 
 
Changes in Nominating Process 
 
There are no material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our Board of 
Directors. 
 
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 
  
The table below summarizes all compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to our executive officers for all services 
rendered in all capacities to us for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. 
 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 
 
                                                        

Name and 
principal position   Year   

Salary 
($)     

Bonus 
($)     

Option 
Awards 

($)     

Stock 
Awards 

($)     

Non-
Equity 

Incentive 
Plan 

Comp. 
($)     

Nonqualified 
Deferred 

Comp. 
Earnings ($)     

All Other 
Comp. 

($)     
Total 

($)   

Alan Jay Weisberg 
(1)   2013   14,769            5,000 (9)                 
Interim Chief 
Executive Officer,    2012     23,567       -       -       37,500 (6)     -       -       -       61,067   
Chief Financial 
Officer, Chairman   2011     48,000       -       -       20,000       -       -       -       68,000   
                                                                      
Shital Parikh Mars 
(2)   2013   104,589    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  
Chief Operating 
Officer   2012     32,308       -       -       -       -       -       -       32,308   
     2011     -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -   
                                                                      
Avraham 
Friedman (3)   2013   45,353                              
Former Chief 
Executive Officer,    2012     136,731       10,000 (7)     -       -       -       -       -       146,731   
Chief Compliance 
Officer, Chairman   2011     300,000       -       -       100,000       -       -       4,900       404,900   
                                                                      
Andy Subachan 
(4)   2013   -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  
Former Chief 
Operating Officer   2012     59,615       -       -       -       -       -       -       59,615   
     2011     240,000       -       -       80,000       -       -       4,900       324,900   
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Vernon Watson 
(5)   2013   9,231    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Former Chief 
Executive Officer   2012     37,522       10,000 (8)     -       -       -       -       -       47,522   
     2011     -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -   
  
   
  
   1. Mr. Weisberg was appointed Chief Finical Officer on December 1, 2010.  Effective on January 22, 2013, Mr. 

Weisberg was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. 
  
   2. On August 27, 2012, Ms. Parikh Mars was appointed as Chief Operating Officer. 
 
   3. Mr. Friedman was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on December 1, 2010.  Effective as of August 27, 2012, 

Mr. Friedman resigned as Chief Executive Officer and was appointed to serve as the Chief Compliance 
Officer.  Effective January 21, 2013, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chairman and, effective February 5, 2013, Mr. 
Friedman resigned as Chief Compliance Officer. 

 
   4. Mr. Subachan was appointed as Chief Operating Officer on December 1, 2010.  Effective as of June 11, 2012, the 

Company terminated Mr. Subachan’s employment as Chief Operating Officer. 
 
   5. Mr. Watson was appointed Chief Executive Officer on August 27, 2012.  Effective as of January 17, 2013, Mr. 

Watson resigned as Chief Executive Officer. 
 
   6. Certain stock issued to Mr. Weisberg was in accordance with his employment agreement, which amounted to 

49,983 shares. An additional 375,000 shares was approved by the Board of Directors and awarded to Mr. 
Weisberg as a bonus. 

 
   7. On July 10, 2012, a cash bonus was approved by the Board of Directors and awarded to Mr. Friedman for his 

work as Chief Executive Officer during 2011. 
 
   8. On August 27, 2012, a relocation bonus was approved by the Board of Directors and awarded to Mr. Watson 

upon his assumption of the Chief Executive Officer role. 
 
   9. 150,000 shares was approved by the Board of Directors and awarded to Mr. Weisberg as a bonus in connection 

with his transition to Interim CEO. 
 
Outstanding Equity Awards 
  

2012 OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 

OPTION AWARDS    STOCK AWARDS 

Name (a)    

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options 
(#)       

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options 
(#)       

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Number of 
Securities       

Option 
Exercise 

Price 
($) 
(e)       

Option 
Expiration 

Date 
(f)       

Number 
of 

Shares 
or Units 
of Stock       

Market 
Value of 
Shares 

or 
Units of 

Stock       

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 
Number 

of       

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 
Market 

or    
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Exercisable 
(b) 

Un-
exercisable 

(c) 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Unearned 
Options 

(#) 
(d) 

That 
Have 
Not 

Vested 
(#) 
(g) 

That 
Have 
Not 

Vested 
($) 
(h) 

Unearned 
Shares, 
Units or 
Other 
Rights 
That 

Have Not 
Vested 

(#) 
(i) 

Payout 
Value of 

Unearned 
Shares, 
Units or 
Other 
Rights 
That 

Have Not 
Vested 

(#) 
(j) 

                                                                           
                                                                           
Alan Jay 
Weisberg 
Interim 
Chief 
Executive 
Officer, 
Chief 
Financial 
Officer       

-          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          - 

   
                                                                                                            
Shital 
Parikh 
Mars 
Chief 
Operating 
Officer       

-          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          - 

   
                                                                                                               
Avraham 
Friedman 
(1) 
Former 
Chief 
Executive 
Officer, 
Chief 
Compliance 
Officer, 
Chairman       

-          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          - 

   
                                                                                                               
Andy 
Subachan 
(2) 
Former 
Chief       

-          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          - 
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Operating 
Officer 
                                                                                                               
Vernon 
Watson (3) 
Former 
Chief 
Executive 
Officer       

-          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          - 

   
  
   
  
   (1) Effective as of August 27, 2012, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chief Executive Officer and was appointed to serve as 

the Chief Compliance Officer.  Effective January 21, 2013, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chairman and, effective 
February 5, 2013, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chief Compliance Officer. 

   (2) Effective as of June 11, 2012, the Company terminated Mr. Subachan’s employment as Chief Operating Officer. 
   (3) Effective as of January 17, 2013, Mr. Watson resigned as Chief Executive Officer. 
 
Employment Agreements 
 
On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Financial Officer, Alan Jay 
Weisberg.  Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Weisberg agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer for a term 
of three years. As consideration for his services, Mr. Weisberg is entitled to a base salary of $48,000 per year. He is also 
eligible to receive quarterly grants of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock in an amount equal to 
$5,000.  Such grants of common stock shall be valued based upon the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock 
on the last trading day of each quarter. On January 1, 2012, Mr. Weisberg agreed to a reduction in his base salary to 
$24,000. 
 
On August 27, 2012, the Company and Ms. Parikh Mars entered into a three-year employment agreement, outlining the 
terms pursuant to which Ms. Parikh Mars shall serve as Chief Operating Officer.  Ms. Parikh Mars will receive a grant of 
10,000 restricted shares of the Corporation’s common stock payable on January 1, 2013. Additionally, the employment 
agreement provides that she is entitled to receive 20,000 restricted shares of the Corporation’s common stock on a 
quarterly basis beginning October 1, 2013. Ms. Parikh Mars’s annual base salary is $105,000, and she may receive 
bonuses as determined by the Board of Directors. Concurrently with the execution of this agreement, Ms. Parikh Mars 
was appointed to the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
On August 27, 2012, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Compliance Officer, Avraham 
A. Friedman.  Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Friedman agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Compliance Officer for a 
term of three years. As consideration for his services, Mr. Friedman is entitled to a base salary of $120,000 per year. On 
January 1, 2012 Mr. Friedman agreed to a reduction in his base salary to $120,000 and waived his eligibility for quarterly 
stock grants amending his December 1, 2010 agreement as Chief Executive Officer. On August 27, 2012 Mr. Friedman 
resigned as Chief Executive Officer. On January 21, 2013, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chairman and subsequently, on 
February 5, 2013, Mr. Friedman resigned as Chief Compliance Officer. He entered into a severance agreement with the 
Company for half of his agreed salary for 6 months in exchange for waiving all claims to bonuses and future stock grants 
from the Company. 
  
On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Operating Officer, Andy 
Subachan.  Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Subachan agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Operating Officer for a 
term of three years. As consideration for his services, Mr. Subachan is entitled to a base salary of $240,000 per year. Mr. 
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Subachan is also entitled to an annual bonus in accordance with the terms of his agreement.  He is also eligible to 
receive quarterly grants of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock in an amount equal to $20,000.  Such 
grants of common stock shall be valued based upon the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock on the last 
trading day of each quarter. On January 1, 2012, Mr. Subachan agreed to a reduction in his base salary to $120,000 and 
waived his eligibility for quarterly stock grants. On June 11, 2012, Mr. Subachan resigned as a director and his 
employment of Chief Operating Officer was terminated by the Company. On July 31, 2012, Mr. Subachan returned 
12,208,432 shares of the Company’s common stock to the Company’s treasury. The shares returned to the Company 
were accounted for at par value and placed in treasury. 
  
On August 27, 2012, the Company and Mr. Watson entered into a three-year employment agreement, pursuant to 
which Mr. Watson shall serve as Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. Watson will receive a $10,000 relocation allowance and be 
granted 100,000 restricted shares of the Company’s common stock payable on January 1, 2013. Additionally, the 
employment agreement provides that he is entitled to receive 25,000 restricted shares of the Corporation’s common 
stock on a quarterly basis beginning April 1, 2013, up to an aggregate of 100,000 shares. Mr. Watson’s annual base 
salary is $120,000, and he may receive bonuses as determined by the Board of Directors. On January 17, 2013, Mr. 
Watson resigned as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and waived his claims for stock grants. 
 
Consulting Agreements 
 
On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Spark Financial Consulting, Inc. 
(“Spark”).  Pursuant to the agreement, Spark agreed to provide certain operational and financial support services to the 
Company for a term of 1 year.  As consideration for the services provided under the agreement, Spark is entitled to 
receive a consulting fee of $12,000 per month.  Spark is also eligible to receive monthly grants of restricted shares of the 
Company’s common stock in an amount equal to $25,000 per month.  Such grants of common stock shall be valued 
based upon the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock on the last trading day of each month. On January 2, 
2012, Spark waived its eligibility for monthly stock grants. Spark is owned by control shareholder Armen Karapetyan. 
Through Spark, Mr. Karapetyan provides ongoing management assistance to Company. 
 
Compensation of Directors 
 
All of our directors are employed directly by the Company. Therefore no additional compensation is granted to them for 
their services as a director. 
 
Director Agreements 
 
Not Applicable. 
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
  
The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of August 31, 
2014, by (i) each person (or group of affiliated persons) who is known by us to own more than five percent of the 
outstanding shares of our common stock, (ii) each of our directors and executive officers, and (iii) all of our directors and 
executive officers as a group. 
  
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with SEC rules and generally includes voting or investment power with 
respect to securities. The principal address of each of the stockholders listed below except as indicated is c/o Progressive 
Care Inc. 901 N Miami Beach Blvd, Ste 1-2, North Miami Beach, FL 33162. We believe that all persons named in the table 
have sole voting and investment power with respect to shares beneficially owned by them. 
 

Name of Owner   

Shares of 
Common 

Stock 
Owned   

Percentage 
of Common 

Stock 
Outstanding 

Armen Karapetyan   16,532,016       50.55% 
Avraham Friedman   6,010,540       18.38% 
Alan Jay Weisberg   627,091       1.92% 
Vernon Watson   0       0.00% 
Shital Parikh Mars   0       0.00% 
Andy Subachan   0       0.00% 
All Officers, Directors, and Control Shareholders as a Group (3 persons)   23,169,647       70.84% 
 
Changes in Control 
 
We are not aware of any arrangements that may result in “changes in control” as that term is defined by the provisions 
of Item 403(c) of Regulation S-K. 
  
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 
 
On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Spark Consulting, Inc. (“Spark”), a firm in 
which Mr. Armen Karapetyan, a related party, is the owner. Pursuant to this agreement, as amended January 1, 2012, 
the Company pays Spark $12,000 per month in cash. Spark is also eligible to receive monthly grants of restricted shares 
of the Company’s common stock in an amount equal to $25,000 per month. On January 2, 2012, Spark waived its 
eligibility for monthly stock grants. 
 
Director Independence 
 
We currently have two directors serving on our Board of Directors, Mr. Weisberg and Ms. Parikh Mars.  We are not a 
listed issuer and, as such, are not subject to any director independence standards.  Using the definition of independence 
set forth in the rules of the AICPA, none of our directors would be considered independent directors of the Company. 
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FORM 52-109F2 

CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS 

FULL CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Alan Jay Weisberg, Chief Financial Officer of Progressive Care, Inc., certify the following:  

 

1.  Review: I have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together, the "interim 

filings") of Progressive Care, Inc. (the "issuer") for the interim period ended December 31, 2012 and 

December 31, 2013.  

 

2.  No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim 

filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to 

be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under 

which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings.  

 

3.  Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim financial 

statements together with the other financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in 

all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the 

date of and for the periods presented in the interim filings.  

 

4.  Responsibility: The issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) and internal control over financial reporting 

(ICFR), as those terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ 

Annual and Interim Filings, for the issuer.  

 

5.  Design: Subject to the limitations, if any, described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3, the issuer’s other 

certifying officer(s) and I have, as at the end of the period covered by the interim filings  

 

(a)  designed DC&P, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable 

assurance that  

 

(i)  material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others, particularly 

during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared; and  

 

(ii)  information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings, interim filings or 

other reports filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, 

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in securities legislation; and  

 

(b)  designed ICFR, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with the issuer’s GAAP.  

 

5.1  Control framework: The control framework the issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I used to design 

the issuer’s ICFR is Internal Control over Finance Reporting – Guidance for Smaller  Public 

Companies published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO). 
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5.2  ICFR – material weakness relating to design: N/A 

 

5.3  Limitation on scope of design: N/A 

 

6.  Reporting changes in ICFR: The issuer has disclosed in its interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s 

ICFR that occurred during the period beginning on January 1, 2012 and ended on December 31, 2013 

that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s ICFR.  

 

Date: September 26, 2014 

 

s/Alan Jay Weisberg  

Alan Jay Weisberg 

Chief Financial Officer 
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FORM 52-109F2 

CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS 

FULL CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Alan Jay Weisberg, Interim Chief Executive Officer of Progressive Care, Inc., certify the following:  

 

1.  Review: I have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together, the "interim 

filings") of Progressive Care, Inc. (the "issuer") for the interim period ended December 31, 2012 and 

December 31, 2013.  

 

2.  No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim 

filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to 

be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under 

which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings.  

 

3.  Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim financial 

statements together with the other financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in 

all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the 

date of and for the periods presented in the interim filings.  

 

4.  Responsibility: The issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) and internal control over financial reporting 

(ICFR), as those terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ 

Annual and Interim Filings, for the issuer.  

 

5.  Design: Subject to the limitations, if any, described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3, the issuer’s other 

certifying officer(s) and I have, as at the end of the period covered by the interim filings  

 

(a)  designed DC&P, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable 

assurance that  

 

(i)  material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others, particularly 

during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared; and  

 

(ii)  information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings, interim filings or 

other reports filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, 

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in securities legislation; and  

 

(b)  designed ICFR, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with the issuer’s GAAP.  

 

5.1  Control framework: The control framework the issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I used to design 

the issuer’s ICFR is Internal Control over Finance Reporting – Guidance for Smaller  Public 

Companies published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO). 
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5.2  ICFR – material weakness relating to design: N/A 

 

5.3  Limitation on scope of design: N/A 

 

6.  Reporting changes in ICFR: The issuer has disclosed in its interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s 

ICFR that occurred during the period beginning on January 1, 2012 and ended on December 31, 2013 

that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s ICFR.  

 

Date: September 26, 2014 

 

s/Alan Jay Weisberg  

Alan Jay Weisberg 

Interim Chief Executive Officer 

 


